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•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 

a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 

are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 

to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 

going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 

content of the standalone financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the 

standalone financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation.  

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 

standalone financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 

of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone 

financial statements may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 

(i)	 planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 

the results of our work; and 

(ii)	 to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 

in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance 

with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and 

to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with 

governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the standalone financial 

statements of the current period and are therefore the key 

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated 

in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 

so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on 

our audit we report that:

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 

and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purpose of our audit.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 

required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of 

those books. 

	 (c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 

and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 

Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and 

the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of 

account.

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements comply with the Ind AS specified 

under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

	 (e)	 On the basis of written representations received 

from the directors as on 31 March, 2021 and 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 

of the directors is disqualified as on  31 March, 

2021 from being appointed as a director in 

terms of  section 164(2)  of the Act. 

	 (f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness 

of such controls, refer to our separate report in 

Annexure ‘A’.

	 (g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 

in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 

amended: 
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		  In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, 
the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with 
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

	 (h)	 with respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position 
in its standalone financial statements - 
Refer Note 38 to the standalone financial 
statements;

		  ii.	 The Company did not have any long 
term contracts including any derivative 
contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses;

		  iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company.

2.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘B’ a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Sanjay Nath
Place: New Delhi 	 Partner
Date: 22 June, 2021	 Membership No.082700
UDIN: 21082700AAABBU7535
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” 
of our report of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) 
of sub section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Raunaq EPC International Limited (“the Company”) 
as of 31 March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of standalone financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.                  
A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2021 based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Sanjay Nath
Place: New Delhi 	 Partner
Date: 22 June, 2021	 Membership No.082700
UDIN: 21082700AAABBU7535
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” 
of our report of even date)

1)	 In respect of its fixed assets:

	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

	 (b)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the fixed assets have been 
physically verified by the management in a phased 
periodical manner which in our opinion is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and nature 
of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification.

	 (c)	 According to the records of the Company, we report 
that the Company does not own any immovable 
property whether freehold or leasehold.

2)	 In respect of its inventories:

	 (a)	 The management has physically verified the 
inventories. In our opinion, the frequency of verification 
is reasonable.

	 (b)	 The discrepancies noticed on verification between the 
physical stocks and the book records were not material 
and such discrepancies have been properly dealt with 
in the books of accounts.   

3)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Act for the financial year 
2020-2021, and accordingly clauses (a), (b) and (c) of para 
(iii) of the order are not applicable.

4)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect 
of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

5)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposit from the public during the year in terms of the 
provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act or any other relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder.

6)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records 
has not been prescribed by the Central Government under 
section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of the activities carried 
on by the Company. 

7)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and the records of the Company examined by 
us in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of 
excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess 
and other statutory dues have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there 
has been a slight delay in a few cases.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the 
aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31 March, 2021 
for a period of more than six months from the date they 
become payable.

	 (c) 	 According to the information and explanation given to 
us and the records of the Company examined by us, 
there are no dues of income tax, goods and service 
tax, customs duty, cess and any other statutory dues 
which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute. 

8)	 Based on the information and explanations given to us, 
we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted 
in repayment of loans and borrowings to the financial 
institutions, banks or debenture holders. The Company 
did not have any outstanding loans and borrowings from 
government during the year.

9)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public 
offer or further public offer including debt instruments. In our 
opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purpose 
for which they were obtained.

10)	 To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by 
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

11)	 In our opinion, the managerial remuneration has been paid 
or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act.

12)	 In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

13)	 In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act 
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in 
the standalone financial statements, as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

14)	 The Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year, therefore reporting under clause 
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable.

15)	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of 
the Company, we report that the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons 
connected with him.

16)	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Sanjay Nath
Place: New Delhi 	 Partner
Date: 22 June, 2021	 Membership No.082700
UDIN: 21082700AAABBU7535
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET 

as at 31 March, 2021
(All amounts in a Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. As at            
 31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3  366.26  455.98 
Intangible Assets 4  -    3.98 
Financial Assets

a. Investments 5  351.58  783.44 
b. Loans and Advances 6  1.03  2.53 
c. Trade Receivables 7  976.46  227.63 
d. Other Financial Assets 8  30.73  213.50 

Total Non-Current Assets  1,726.06  1,687.06 
Current Assets
Inventories 10  87.10  10.42 
Financial Assets

a. Trade Receivables 11  471.07  2,557.71 
b. Cash and Cash Equivalents 12  90.29  34.41 
c. Bank Balances other than (b) above 13  355.45  232.33 
d. Loans and Advances 14  18.11  20.31 
e. Other Financial Assets 15  6.12  9.95 

Current Tax Assets 16  86.06  134.79 
Other Current Assets 17  381.29  422.94 
Total Current Assets  1,495.49  3,422.86 

Total Assets  3,221.55  5,109.92 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share Capital 18  334.32  334.32 
Other Equity 19  985.05  1,017.32 
Total Equity  1,319.37  1,351.64 

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

a. Borrowings 20  506.91  466.56 
Provisions 21  17.12  42.06 
Deferred Tax Liability 9  49.36  25.01 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  573.39  533.63 
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

a. Borrowings 22  15.94  465.30 
b. Trade Payables 23

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -    
Total Outstanding Dues of other than Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises	

 649.47  1,662.42 

c. Other Financial Liabilities 24  329.77  344.22 

Other Current Liabilities 25  225.95  588.83 
Provisions 26  107.66  163.88 
Total Current Liabilities  1,328.79  3,224.65 
Total Liabilities  1,902.18  3,758.28 

Total Equity and Liabilities  3,221.55  5,109.92 
Significant accounting policies and notes to standalone financial statements 1-48

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP            
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Surinder Paul Kanwar
Chairman and Managing Director  

(DIN: 00033524)

 Sachit Kanwar        
Executive Director-Operations

(DIN: 02132124)

Sameer Kanwar (Din: 00033622)
Dr. Sanjeev Kumar (Din: 00364416) 
Seethalakshmi Venkataraman (Din: 07156898)
Rajiv Chandra Rastogi (Din: 00035460)
Naresh Kumar Verma (Din: 07087356) 
Directors

Sanjay Nath
Partner
Membership No. 082700

Rajan Malhotra
Chief Executive Officer
(PAN: AAEPM3206C)

Kailash Chandra Yadav
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AAAPY0255B)

Rashmi Aswal
Company Secretary

(PAN: AMEPR6639L)

Date: 22 June, 2021
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This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP            
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Surinder Paul Kanwar
Chairman and Managing Director  

(DIN: 00033524)

 Sachit Kanwar        
Executive Director-Operations

(DIN: 02132124)

Sameer Kanwar (Din: 00033622)
Dr. Sanjeev Kumar (Din: 00364416) 
Seethalakshmi Venkataraman (Din: 07156898)
Rajiv Chandra Rastogi (Din: 00035460)
Naresh Kumar Verma (Din: 07087356) 
Directors

Sanjay Nath
Partner
Membership No. 082700

Rajan Malhotra
Chief Executive Officer
(PAN: AAEPM3206C)

Kailash Chandra Yadav
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AAAPY0255B)

Rashmi Aswal
Company Secretary

(PAN: AMEPR6639L)

Date: 22 June, 2021

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

(All amounts in a Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Note No. For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Revenue from operations 27  987.13  1,853.13 

Other income 28  522.56  368.87 
Total revenue/income  1,509.69  2,222.00 
EXPENSES

a. Cost of material consumed 29  42.05  518.72 

b. Changes in Inventory of work-in-progress 29A  77.54  -   

c. Employee benefits expenses 30  365.38  562.72 

d. Finance cost 31  149.21  291.70 

e. Depreciation and amortization expenses 32  74.67  83.64 

f. Bad debts written off  165.72  687.05 

g. Allowance for expected credit loss  9.36  559.27 

h. Decrease in Fair value of Investment  -    399.92 

i. Allowance for Impairment losses  -    764.80 

j. Other expenses 33  631.12  986.46 
Total expenses  1,515.05  4,854.28 
Profit/(Loss) before tax  (5.36)  (2,632.28)
Income tax expenses

a. Current tax  -    -   

b. Tax expense related to prior period  -   -
Net current tax 35  -    -   
Deferred tax-charge/(credit) 35  24.35  289.50 
Total tax expense  24.35  289.50 
Profit/(Loss) for the year  (29.71)  (2,921.78)
Other Comprehensive Income
a. Items that may be reclassified to Profit and Loss

Income tax effect  -    -   
 -    -   

b. Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
Re-measurement gains/(Losses) on defined benefit plan  (2.56)  11.19 
Income tax effect  -    -   

 (2.56)  11.19 
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (net of tax) (a+b)  (2.56)  11.19 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  (32.27)  (2,910.59)

Earnings per equity share of [nominal value per share b 10/-  
(31 March, 2020 : c 10/-)]		
Basic earning per share 34  (0.89)  (87.39)

Diluted earning per share 34  (0.89)  (87.39)
Significant accounting policies and notes to standalone financial 
statements

1-48
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

(All amounts in ^ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March, 2021

Year ended 
31 March, 2020

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit/(Loss) before tax  (5.36)  (2,632.28)
Adjustments for:

Net (gain)/Loss on fair value of financial assets through Statement of 
Profit & loss

 (112.16)  1,164.72 

Expected credit loss  9.36  559.27 

Depreciation and amortization  74.67  83.64 

Loss on sale of fixed Assets  2.78  4.36 

Interest and other charges  149.21  291.70 

Interest Income  (33.37)  (39.75)

Profit on sale of asset  (0.03)  (0.06)
Operating profit before working capital changes  (85.10) (568.40)
Changes in working Capital
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Trade receivables  2,077.28  (713.66)

Inventories  (76.68)  32.66 

Long Term loans & advances  1.50  3.40 

Short term loans & advances  2.20  (8.16)

Non-current trade receivables  (748.82)  2,071.40 

Other current financial assets  3.83  4.34 

Other non current financial assets  182.77  39.49 

Other current assets  90.38  210.91 
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:	

Trade payables  (1,012.95)  (1,334.54)

Provisions  (83.72)  (8.83)

Other current liabilities  (376.64)  24.64 
Cash generated from operations  144.25  (246.75)

Direct Taxes paid (Net)  -    -   
Net Cash from/(used) in operating activities  144.25  (246.75)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of fixed assets  (0.47)  (35.70)

Sale of fixed assets/Investments  560.76  9.04 

Interest received  33.37  39.75 

Investment in deposits  (124.82)  361.93 
Net Cash from/(used) in investment activities  468.84  375.02 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long term borrowings  54.61  270.00 

Proceeds (repayments) from short term borrowings  (449.36)  (199.05)

Repayment of long term borrowings  (13.25)  (22.91)

Interest and other charges paid  (149.21)  (291.70)

Dividend including dividend distribution Tax paid  (1.71)  (1.34)

Net Cash from/(used) in financing activities  (558.92)  (245.00)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  54.17  (116.73)
Opening balance of Cash and cash equivalents  42.71  159.44 
Closing balance of Cash and cash equivalents  96.88  42.71 
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
for the year ended 31 March, 2021.... contd.

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statements			

(All amounts in a Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March, 2021

Year ended 
31 March, 2020

(a) Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following

Cash on hand  0.42  1.12 

Balance with scheduled banks:

in current accounts  96.46  41.59 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   96.88  42.71 

(b)	 The above Cash Flow statement is prepared as per “Indirect method” specified in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash 
Flows”.

	 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including changes arising from cash flows and non cash 
changes as per IND AS 7 - statement of cash flows are shown below

Particulars Year ended 
31 March, 2021

Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Opening Balance of Borrowings at beginning of the year  956.67  908.62 

Net Addition in Lease Liability during the year  -    -   
Net Cash Flow from/(Used in) Financing Activities *  (408.00)  48.05 
Closing Balance of Borrowings and Lease Liability at end of the year  548.67  956.67 

	 * Excluding proceeds from issuance of equity shares, securities premium, finance costs, dividend and dividend distribution tax.	
				  

	
This is the Statement of Cash flow referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP            
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Surinder Paul Kanwar
Chairman and Managing Director  

(DIN: 00033524)

 Sachit Kanwar        
Executive Director-Operations

(DIN: 02132124)

Sameer Kanwar (Din: 00033622)
Dr. Sanjeev Kumar (Din: 00364416) 
Seethalakshmi Venkataraman (Din: 07156898)
Rajiv Chandra Rastogi (Din: 00035460)
Naresh Kumar Verma (Din: 07087356) 
Directors

Sanjay Nath
Partner
Membership No. 082700

Rajan Malhotra
Chief Executive Officer
(PAN: AAEPM3206C)

Kailash Chandra Yadav
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AAAPY0255B)

Rashmi Aswal
Company Secretary

(PAN: AMEPR6639L)

Date: 22 June, 2021
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A.	 Equity Share Capital
	 (All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Amount
As at 31 March, 2020					     19  334.32 
Change in equity share capital					      -   
As at 31 March, 2021					     19  334.32 

B.	 Other Equity

Particulars Notes

Reserves and Surplus Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Total 
Other 
Equity

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at 01 April, 2019  0.67  162.43 1,525.27  2,197.82  41.72  3,927.91 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  -    -    -   (2,921.78)  -    (2,921.78)

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on 
defined benefit plan

-  -    -    -    11.19  11.19 

Total comprehensive income for 
the year 20  0.67  162.43 1,525.27  (723.96)  52.91  1,017.32 

Transactions with owners in 
their capacity as owners:

Remeasurement of defined benefit 
plans (net of tax)

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance at 31 March, 2020 20  0.67  162.43 1,525.27  (723.96)  52.91  1,017.32 

Balance at 01 April, 2020  0.67  162.43 1,525.27  (723.96)  52.91  1,017.32 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  -    -    -    (29.71)  -    (29.72)

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on 
defined benefit plan

 -    -    -    -    (2.56)  (2.56)

Total comprehensive income for 
the year 20  0.67  162.43 1,525.27  (753.67)  50.35  985.05 

Transactions with owners in 
their capacity as owners:

Remeasurement of defined benefit 
plans (net of tax)

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance at 31 March, 2021 20  0.67  162.43 1,525.27  (753.67)  50.35  985.05 

This is the Statement of changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP            
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Naresh Kumar Verma (Din: 07087356) 
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Partner
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Rajan Malhotra
Chief Executive Officer
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Kailash Chandra Yadav
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note Particulars

1.	 COMPANY OVERVIEW		

	 Raunaq EPC International Limited (‘the Company’) is engaged in Engineering Contracting Business, established 
in 1965 and primarily in the service of core infrastructural and industrial sectors in India, namely Power, Chemical, 
Hydro-carbon, Metal and Automobile sectors. The Company is a Limited Company and has its Registered Office 
in Haryana, India. Its shares are listed on the BSE Limited. The Company has sufficient in-house resources in 
terms of Engineering Manpower, Tools & Plants, and Technical know-how.		

	 These financial statements are approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting 
held on  22 June, 2021.		

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES		

	 This Note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise 
stated.		

2.1	 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	

	 a.	 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

		  The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other relevant 
provisions of the Act. 

	 b.	 These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:-

	 	 • 	 Certain Financial Assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

	 	 • 	 Defined benefit plans - Plan assets measured at fair value.

2.2	 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY	

	 These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency 
and all amount are rounded to the nearest lakhs and two decimals thereof, except as stated otherwise.	

2.3	 USE OF ESTIMATES	

	 The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make judgement, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported account of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.	

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are known or materialized. 

2.4	 REVENUE RECOGNITION	

	 a.	 REVENUE FROM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

		  Company is providing EPC services to its customer under the fixed price contract. Contract Revenue is 
recognized in the year in which the services are rendered. In fixed price contract, revenue is recognised 
based on actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be 
provided. This is determined based on the actual work done approved by the customer.

		  Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. 
Any resulting increase or decrease in estimated revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period 
in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the management.

		  When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognized 
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.
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Note Particulars

		  Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent 
that may have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured and received from 
customer. 

b.	 OTHERS ITEMS OF REVENUE

	 Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
effective interest rate method.

	 Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established.

	 Other items like extra items claim, insurance claims, any receipts on account of pending income tax, sales tax, 
GST and excise duty assessments, where quantum of accruals cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, 
are recognized as income only when revenue is virtually certain which generally coincides with receipts.

2.5	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT	

	 Property, Plant and Equipment assets are carried at cost net of tax/duty credit availed less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the items.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate 
asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.	

	 The items of property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for use are disclosed as Capital work-in- 
progress and are carried at historical cost.

	 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 
is greater than its recoverable amount.	

	 Property, Plant and Equipment are eliminated from the financial statements, either on disposal or when retired 
from active use.	

	 Gain and losses on disposal or retirement of assets are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. 
These are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.	

	 Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values on the 
basis of useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Act, which are also supported.	

	 The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.	

	 The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 
at end of each financial year and any changes there-in are considered as change in estimate and accounted 
prospectively.

2.6	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)	

	 Intangible assets (Computer Software) are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impaired loss, if any. 
Computer Software for internal use which is primarily acquired is capitalized. Subsequently costs associated with 
maintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes licenses fees, cost 
of implementation, system integration services etc. where applicable.

	 The Company amortises intangible assets (Computer Software) with a finite useful life using the straight line 
method over a period of (3/5years).

2.7	 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS	

	 The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing of an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset or Cash-generating unit (CGU) fair 
value less cost of disposal and its fair value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
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unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other asset or group 
of asset. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.	

	 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining the fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken in account. If no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impaired losses are recognised in 
statement of profit and loss.	

2.8	 INVENTORIES	

	 Raw material, stores, work-in-progress and traded goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
However, these items are considered to be realisable at cost if the finished products in which they will be used, are 
expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase and other cost incurred 
in bringing them to their present location and condition. The cost, in general, is determined under First In First Out 
(FIFO) Method.	

	 Contract cost incurred related to future activity of the contract are recognised as an asset provided it is probable 
that they will be recovered during the contract price. Such cost represent the amount due from customer and are 
often classified as contract work-in-progress.	

2.9	 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS	

	 Transaction in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. Subsequently monetary items are translated at closing exchange rates of balance sheet date and the 
resulting exchange difference recognised in Profit and Loss. Difference arising on settlement of monetary items 
are also recognised in profit or loss.	

	 Non-monetary items that are carried in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rate at the dates of the transaction.	

2.10	EARNINGS PER SHARE	

	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For considering the Company’s 
earnings per share the net profit or loss for the period is taken. The weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other 
than the conversion of potential equity shares, if any, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, 
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the 
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.	

2.11	BORROWING COSTS	

	 Borrowing cost specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other 
borrowing costs are charged to revenue in the period in which it is incurred. Borrowing costs consists of interest 
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes 
exchange difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost. 	

	 Finance costs will normally include:	

	 i)	 interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method as described in Ind AS 109,

	 ii)	 the unwinding of the effect of discounting provisions.

2.12	PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES	

	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be 
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.	

Note Particulars
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	 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimates of the expenditure required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is 
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability 
is not considered. However, a disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation 
arising from past event, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises 
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

2.13	DIVIDEND	

	 Dividend on equity shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim 
dividend is recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.	

2.14	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	

	 For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and at bank, 
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investment with original maturities of three months 
or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.	

2.15	EMPLOYEE BENEFITS	

	 a.	 Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss of the year in 
which the related service are rendered.

	 b.	 Compensated absence is accounted for using the project unit credit method, on the basis of actuarial 
valuation carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising 
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to profit and loss 
in the period in which they arise.

	 c.	 Contribution payable by the Company to the concerned government authorities in respect of provident fund, 
family pension fund and employee state insurance are defined contribution plans. The contributions are 
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee 
renders the related service. The Company does not have any further obligation in this respect, beyond such 
contribution.

	 d.	 Certain employees are participated in a defined contribution plan of superannuation. The Company has no 
further obligation to plan beyond its monthly contribution which are periodically contributed to a trust fund, the 
corpus of which is invested with the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

	 e.	 The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plan is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, 
on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial 
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged 
or credited to other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in 
Statement of profit and loss.

		  The Company operates a defined benefit plan for gratuity, which requires contributions to be made to a 
separately administered fund. The fund is managed by trust. The corpus of which is invested with the Life 
Insurance Corporation of India.

2.16	LEASES	

	 Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 
as finance leases. When acquired, such assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum 
lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are 
recognized as an expense on a straight line basis in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease 
term.	

2.17	INCOME TAXES	

	 Income tax expenses comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expenses are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss except that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in those case it is 
recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’. Current Income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at 
the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.	

Note Particulars
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	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realized.	

	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the year in 
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates 
on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that includes the 
enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that future profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses 
can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiary where it is 
expected that earnings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in foreseeable future. The Company off sets current 
tax assets and Current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts 
and where it indents either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. 
The income tax provision of the interim period is made based on the best estimate of the annual average tax rate 
expected to be applicable for the full financial year.	

2.18	FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS	

	 A financial instrument is any contract that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.	

	 a.	 Financial Assets

		  Initial recognition and measurement

		  All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

		  Subsequent measurement

		  Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss depending on 
its business model for managing those financial assets and the asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.

		  Derecognition

		  The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset to another entity.

		  Impairment of Financial Assets

		  The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment 
loss on the financial assets. If credit risk has not increased significantly 12 months ECL is used to provide 
the impairment loss. If credit risk has increased significantly lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, 
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

		  ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 
original EIR.

		  ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expenses 
in the statement of profit & loss.

	 b.	 Financial Liabilities

		  Initial recognition and measurement

		  Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and 
loss, loans and borrowings or payable.

Note Particulars
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		  All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

		  The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

		  Subsequent measurement

		  The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification described below: 

		  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

		  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes derivative financial instruments entered into by 
the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships. All change in the fair 
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

		  Loan and borrowings

		  After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized costs 
using EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as 
well as through the EIR amortization process.

		  Decrecognition

		  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.19	SEGMENT REPORTING	

	 Operating systems are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker (CODM). The Managing Director of the Company has been identified as CODM and he is 
responsible for allocating the resources, assess the financial performance and position of the Company and make 
strategic decision. Refer note 37 for segment information presented.

2.20	CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS	

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates, 
judgement and assumptions which affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet 
date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as 
at the balance sheet date.	

	 The areas involving critical estimates or judgement are:	

	 i.	 Critical estimates	

		  a.	 Measurement of defined benefit obligations - Note 43
		  b.	 Estimated useful life of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment - Note 2.5 and 2.6
		  c. 	 Estimated fair value of financial instruments - Note 45
		  d. 	 Recognition of revenue - Note 2.4
		  e.	 Provision for expected credit losses - Note 40

	 ii.	 Significant Judgements	

		  a.	 Designating financial asset/liability through fair value through profit or loss so as to reduce/eliminate 
accounting mismatch.

		  b.	 Probability of an outflow of resources to settle an obligation resulting in recognition of provision.

	 The estimates, judgement and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon Management’s 
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances and as at the date of financial statements. Accounting estimates 
could differ from period to period and accordingly appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management 
becomes aware of the changes. Actual results could differ from the estimates.	

Note Particulars
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Note 3 : Property, Plant & Equipment 

Particulars Plant and 
Machinery

Office 
Equipment

Furniture 
and Fixtures

Electricals 
Fittings Vehicles Computers Total

As at 31 March, 2020
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount  411.43  2.67  23.17  0.47  200.77  21.10  659.61 

Addition  31.98  0.22  2.93  -    -    0.57  35.70 

Disposals/transfers  21.08  2.47  11.18  -    3.65  11.78  50.16 
Closing gross carrying amount  422.33  0.42  14.92  0.47  197.12  9.89  645.15 
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation  82.30  1.44  3.67  0.10  55.43  12.26  155.22 

Depreciation charged during the year  40.28  0.28  2.90  -    25.79  2.20  71.47 

Disposals/transfers  12.54  2.30  9.71  -    3.33  9.63  37.52 
Closing accumulated depreciation  110.04  (0.58)  (3.14)  0.10  77.89  4.83  189.17 
Net carrying amount  312.29  1.00  18.06  0.37  119.23  5.06  455.98 
As at 31 March, 2021
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount  422.33  0.42  14.92  0.47  197.12  9.89  645.15 

Addition  0.29  0.18  -    -    -    -    0.47 

Disposals/transfers  18.92  -    12.10  -    -    -    31.02 
Closing gross carrying amount  403.70  0.60  2.82  0.47  197.12  9.89  614.60 
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation  110.04  (0.58)  (3.14)  0.10  77.89  4.83  189.17 

Depreciation charged during the year  42.05  0.15  1.82  -    25.55  1.12  70.69 

Disposals/transfers  11.52  -    -    -    -    -    11.52 
Closing accumulated depreciation  140.57  (0.43)  (1.32)  0.10  103.44  5.95  248.34 
Net carrying amount  263.13  1.03  4.14  0.37  93.68  3.94  366.26 

Note 4 : Intangible Assets 

Particulars Software Total
As at 31 March, 2020
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount  45.74  45.74 
Addition  -    -   
Disposals/transfers  12.51  12.51 
Closing gross carrying amount  33.23  33.23 
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation  28.94  28.94 
Depreciation charged during the year  12.20  12.20 
Disposals/transfers  11.89  11.89 
Closing accumulated depreciation  29.25  29.25 
Net carrying amount  3.98  3.98 
As at 31 March, 2021
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount  33.23  33.23 
Addition  -    -   
Disposals/transfers  -    -   
Closing gross carrying amount  33.23  33.23 
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation  29.25  29.25 
Depreciation charged during the year  3.98  3.98 
Disposals/transfers  -    -   
Closing accumulated depreciation  33.23  33.23 
Net carrying amount  -    -   

(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 5 : Non-current Investments 

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Investment in Equity Instruments
A. Investment in Associate Company (At cost)

Unquoted
37,06,159 (31 March, 2020 : 1,48,77,038) Equity shares of b 10/- each	 178.88  1,487.70 

fully paid up in Xlerate Driveline India Limited

Less:- Allowance for Impairment losses  -    (764.80)

Sub-total  178.88  722.90 

B. Investment in Others
Quoted

At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 2,36,097 (31 March, 2020 :  172.70  60.54 

2,36,097) Equity shares of c 10/- each fully paid up in Bharat Gears 
Limited

Sub-total  172.70  60.54 
Total  351.58  783.44 

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments and market value thereof 172.70 60.54

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 178.88 722.90

Note 6 : Non-current Loans and Advances

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Security deposit

Unsecured, considered good  1.03  2.53 
Total  1.03  2.53 

Note 7 : Non-current Trade Receivables

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Trade receivables including retention money  976.46  227.63 

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  9.36  17.71 

Trade receivables - credit impaired  (9.36)  (17.71)

Total  976.46  227.63 

Note 8 : Other Non-current Financial Assets

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Long term deposits with banks with maturity period more than 12 
months			    30.73  213.50 

Refer (a) below

Total  30.73  213.50 

(a)	 ^ 30.73 Lakhs (31 March, 2020 : ^ 213.50 Lakhs) held as Margin money against bank guarantees.

(All amounts in a Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 9 : Deferred Tax Liability

Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

(Charged)/ 
credit 

during the 
year

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Deferred tax liabilities on account of:		

a) Difference between book and tax depreciation	  (20.20)  4.81  (25.01)

b) Income on Fair valuation of shares of Bharat Gears Limited	  (29.16)  (29.16)  -   

Total deferred tax assets  (49.36)  (24.35)  (25.01)

Note 10 : Inventories

Particulars As at
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

At lower of cost and net realisable value

Stock-in trade-traded goods  14.92  10.42 

Work in Progress  72.18  -   

Total  87.10  10.42 

Note 11 : Current Trade Receivables

Particulars As at
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated

Trade receivables  471.07  2,557.71 

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  -    588.00 

Trade receivables - credit impaired  -    (588.00)

Total  471.07  2,557.71 

Note 12 : Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Balance with banks

In current account  89.87  33.29 

Cash on hand  0.42  1.12 

Total  90.29  34.41 

Note 13 : Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Other balances
Earmarked balances with banks for:
Unpaid dividends  6.59  8.30 
Fixed deposits with various authorities
Margin money against bank guarantees and others  348.86  224.03 

Total  355.45  232.33 

(All amounts in a Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 14 : Current Loans and Advances

Particulars As at
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits  6.67  5.20 

Loans and advances to employee  11.44  15.10 

Total  18.11  20.30 

Note 15 : Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Accrued interest on deposits with banks and others  6.12  9.95 

Total  6.12  9.95 

Note 16 : Current Tax Assets

Particulars As at
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Current tax assets (net of provision)  86.06  134.79 

Total  86.06  134.79 

Note 17 : Other Current Assets

Particulars As at
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Unsecured considered good

Prepaid expenses  31.21  37.50 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received  163.51  130.00 

Balance with Government authorities  186.57  255.44 

Total  381.29  422.94 

Note 18 : Equity Share Capital

Particulars
As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020

No. of Shares a in Lakhs No. of Shares a in Lakhs
Authorized:

Equity shares of ` 10 each (31 March, 2020 ` 10 each) 3,50,00,000  3,500.00 3,50,00,000  3,500.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

Equity shares of ` 10 each (31 March, 2020 ` 10 each) 33,43,243  334.32 33,43,243  334.32 

Total  334.32  334.32 

The Company has one class of equity share having a par value of a 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one 
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in 
the Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are 
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to 
their shareholding.				  

Reconciliation of shares issued				  

As no fresh issue of shares or reduction in capital was made during the current year as well as during the previous 
period, hence there is no change in the opening and closing capital. Accordingly, reconciliation of share capital has not 
been given.

(All amounts in a Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company	
			 

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020

No. of 
Shares % No. of 

Shares % 

Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar 14,66,695 43.87 14,66,695 43.87

Strategic Capital Partners Private Limited  2,45,316 7.34  2,45,316 7.34

Soham Ashokkumar Shah  2,00,972 6.01  2,35,972 7.06

Note 19 : Other Equity

Particulars Refer following 
items

As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Capital reserve 19(a)  0.67  0.67 

Securities premium reserve 19(b)  162.43  162.43 

General reserve 19(c)  1,525.27  1,525.27 

Retained earnings 19(d)  (703.32)  (671.05)

Total  985.05  1,017.32 

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

a. Capital reserve-balance at the beginning and end of the year  0.67  0.67 

b. Securities premium reserve-balance at the beginning and end of the year  162.43  162.43 

c. General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,525.27  1,525.27 

Add: Transferred from retained earnings  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  1,525.27  1,525.27 

d. Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  (671.05)  2,239.54 

Profit for the year  (29.71)  (2,921.78)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax)  (2.56)  11.19 

Balance at the end of the year  (703.32)  (671.05)

Total  985.05  1,017.32 

Nature and purpose of reserves				  

Capital Reserve: Represents the reserves created as a result of forfeiture of shares of the Company. Capital reserve 
will be utilized for issue of fully paid bonus shares.	

Securities Premium Reserve: The amount received from share holders in excess of face value of the equity 
shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve and will be utilized as per provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.	

General Reserve: The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Company before declaring dividend 
to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of Companies Act, 1956. Mandatory transfer to general reserve is 
not required under the Companies Act, 2013. General Reserve will be utilized as per the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The same is a free reserve and available for distribution.	

(All amounts in a Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 20 : Non-current Borrowings

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Secured borrowings

Term loans from banks  18.31  31.56 

Unsecured borrowings

Loan from corporates  236.00  235.00 

Loan from others  252.60  200.00 

Total  506.91  466.56 

Note:

1.	 Term Loan from bank ` 18.31 Lakhs (31 March, 2020 : ` 31.56 Lakhs) was secured by way of hypothecation/
exclusive charge on assets financed. Repayable along with interest at the rate of 8% p.a. in 60 monthly installments 
financed by HDFC Bank Limited.		

2.	 Loan from Corporates : Repayable at the end of 5/3 years and interest is charged at the rate of 9%/10% p.a. 	

3.	 Loan from others : Loan is non-interest bearing and Repayable at the end of 5 years or repayable at the end of 5 
years and interest is charged at the rate of 9% p.a.

Note 21 : Non-current Provisions

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for compensated absences  13.53  42.06 

Provision for Gratuity  3.59  -   

Total  17.12  42.06 

Note 22 : Current Borrowings

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Secured Borrowings

Working capital loans repayable on demand from	

- Bank - Overdraft Facility (OD) [refer footnote (i)]  -    167.13 

- NSIC RMA Account [refer footnote (ii)]  15.94  298.17 

Total  15.94  465.30 

Note:			 

(i) 	 Overdraft facility from bank is secured against the security of the Fixed deposit of Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar, 
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.			 

(ii) 	 Secured against bank guarantee issued by State Bank of India.

Note 23 : Trade Payables

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   

Total outstanding dues of trade payable other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 649.47  1,662.42 

Total  649.47  1,662.42 

(All amounts in a Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



52 53

Annual Report 2020-21

There were no amounts outstanding to be paid to micro and small enterprises registered under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED). No interest is paid/payable during the year to any micro or small enterprise 
registered under the MSMED.No amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year and no amount  
of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years. The above information takes into account only those  
suppliers who have responded to the enquiries made by the Company for this purpose.	

Note 24 : Other Current Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note 20)  25.82  24.81 

Unclaimed dividend  6.59  8.30 

Employee dues  205.77  216.32 

Creditors for expenses  57.39  71.20 

Interest payable  34.20  23.59 
Total  329.77  344.22 

Note 25 : Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Statutory dues  42.24  59.61 

Contractually reimbursable expenses  19.98  29.62 

Contract mobilization advances from customers  163.73  499.60 

Total  225.95  588.83 

Note 26 : Current Provisions

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for compensated absences  11.59  29.18 

Provision for gratuity  13.52  29.66 
Provision-others

Provision for other outstanding liabilities  82.55  105.04 

Total  107.66  163.88 

Note 27 : Revenue from Operations

Particulars
For the Year 

ended 31 March, 
2021

For the Year 
ended 31 March, 

2020
Sales of service (service contracts/supply contracts)	  987.13  1,853.13 

Total  987.13  1,853.13 

Note 28 : Other Income

Particulars
For the Year 

ended 31 March, 
2021

For the Year 
ended 31 March, 

2020
Interest income  33.37  39.75 

Net gain/(loss) on fair value of financial assets through statement of profit & 
loss (FVTPL)

 112.16  -   

Amount received from revenue authorities  -    -   

Unclaimed balances written back  338.74  242.54 

Other non-operating income  38.29  86.58 
Total  522.56  368.87 

(All amounts in a Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 29 : Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Opening stock  10.42  43.08 

Add: Purchases during the year  46.55  486.06 

Less: Closing stock  14.92  10.42 

Net material consumed  42.05  518.72 

Total  42.05  518.72 

Note 29A : Changes in Inventory of Work-in-Progress	

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Inventories (at the end of the year)  

- Work-in-progress  (77.54)  -   

Inventories (at the beginning of the year)

- Work-in-progress  -    -   

Total  77.54  -   

Note 30 : Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

a. Salaries and wages  319.77  478.13 

b. Contributions to provident and other fund  21.46  36.12 

c. Gratuity fund contribution - (Refer note 43)  11.42  27.25 

d. Staff welfare expenses  12.73  21.22 

Total  365.38  562.72 

Note 31 : Finance Cost

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

a. Interest expenses on:

Borrowings  67.22  168.65 

b. Other borrowing costs  81.99  123.05 

(Bank and other financial charges)

Total  149.21  291.70 

Note 32 : Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  70.69  71.44 

Amortization of intangible assets  3.98  12.20 

Total  74.67  83.64 

(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 33 : Other Expenses

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Consumption of stores and spare parts  85.86  213.86 

Erection expenses  365.26  429.03 

Power and fuel  5.19  11.41 

Hire charges  14.61  54.61 

Travelling & conveyance  33.21  58.55 

Rent  23.41  26.85 

Repairs and maintenance - machinery  1.44  4.92 

Insurance  11.92  18.55 

Rates and taxes  10.25  12.60 

Freight and forwarding  7.74  36.44 

Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below)  4.02  4.50 

Loss on fixed assets sold  2.78  4.36 

Legal & professional charges  32.26  52.60 

Miscellaneous expenses  33.17  58.18 

Total  631.12  986.46 

Auditors’ Remuneration paid/payable for the year

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Statutory audit fee  2.50  2.50 

Limited review and other certifications  1.52  1.91 

Reimbursement  -    0.09 

Total  4.02  4.50 

Note 34 : Earnings Per Share

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 33,43,243 33,43,243

Profit after tax available for shareholders  (29.72)  (2,921.78)

Basic & diluted earning per share  (0.89)  (87.39)

Face value per share  10.00  10.00 

Note 35 : Tax Reconciliation			 

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit as per Ind AS 12 :		

Income Tax Expenses

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expenses that how the tax expenses are affected  
by non-assessable and non-deductible items:
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Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Income Tax Expenses

Current tax for the year -  -   

Adjustment for current tax of prior period -  -   

Total current tax expenses -  -   

Deferred tax

Increase/(Decrease) in deferred tax assets -  (317.06)

(Increase)/Decrease in deferred tax liabilities  (24.36)  27.56 

Total deferred tax income/(expenses)  (24.36)  (289.50)

Income tax expenses  24.36  289.50 

Reconciliation of tax expenses and accounting profit multiplied by applicable Indian tax rate:

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Profit before income taxes  (5.36)  (2,632.28)

Enacted tax rate in India (%) 26.00% 26.00%

Computed expected tax expenses  -    -   

Tax effect due to non-taxable income for Indian tax purposes  (29.16)  -   

Tax reversals  -    -   

Effect of non-deductible expenses  29.16  -   

Others  24.36  289.50 

Income tax expenses  24.36  289.50 

Note 36 : Disclosure required pursuant to Ind AS-36 “Impairment of Assets”

The Company has carried out impairment test on its fixed assets as on the date of Balance Sheet and the Management 
is of the opinion that there is no asset for which provision for impairment is required to be made as per Ind AS - 36 
Impairment of Assets.			 

Note 37 : Operating Segment Information					   

The Company’s operations predominantly consist of construction activities. Hence there are no reportable segments 
under Ind AS - 108 “ Operating Segment ” during the year under report, the Company has engaged in its business only 
within India and not in any other country. The condition prevailing in India being uniform, no separate geographical 
disclosures are considered necessary.									       

Note 38 : Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Contingent liabilities

a. Guarantees/ letter of credit given by the banks which are counter guaranteed 
by the company and secured against fixed and current assets	

 1,920.14  2,378.00 

b. Guarantee given to bank on behalf of associate company	  141.44  256.63 

c. Others where company had gone in to appeals before appropriate 
authorities:

-Sales Tax  20.29  20.29 

-Income Tax  74.59  44.83 

d. Corporate guarantee  150.05  -   

Total  2,306.51  2,699.75 
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Note 39 : Capital Management					  

The Company’s capital management objective is to maximize the total shareholder’s return by optimizing cost of capital 
through flexible capital structure that supports growth. Company ensure optimal credit risk profile to maintain/enhance 
credit rating.

The Company determines the amount of capital requirement on the basis of annual operating plan and long-term 
strategic plans. The funding requirements are met through internal accruals and long term/short term borrowings. The 
Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of Net debts to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt 
portfolio of the Company.					   

For the purpose of Company’s capital management, equity includes paid up equity share capital and reserves and 
surplus and Debt comprises of long term borrowings including current maturities of these borrowings.

The following table summarizes long term debt and equity of the Company:

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Equity share capital  334.32  334.32 

Other equity  985.05  1,017.32 

Total equity  1,319.37  1,351.64 

Long term debt  532.73  491.36 
Debt to equity ratio  0.40  0.36 

Note 40 : Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies					   

The Company’s business activities exposed to a variety of financial risk viz., market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
The Company’s focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial risk and to address the issue to minimize the 
potential adverse effects of its financial performance.					   

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The 
Company’s financial risk management policy is set by the Company’s management.

Market risk					   

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the foreign currency 
exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes.

Interest rate risk					   

Out of total borrowings, large portion represents short term borrowings and the interest rate primarily based on the 
Company’s credit rating and also the changes in the financial market. Company influence rating and also factors which 
influence the determination of the interest rates by the banks to minimize the interest continuously monitoring over all 
factors rate risks.	 				  

Exposure to interest rate risk

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at  
31 March, 2020

Floating rate borrowings: Working capital loan			    31.75  48.58 

Total  31.75  48.58 

A change of 50 basis points (bp) in interest rates would have following impact on profit before tax	

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at  
31 March, 2020

50 bp increase - decrease in profit  1.53  1.89 

50 bp decrease - increase in profit  (1.53)  (1.89)
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Credit risk					   

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the 
Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, loans, investments and other 
financial assets.					   

At each reporting date, the Company measures loss allowance for certain class of financial assets based on historical 
trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the Company operates.

Credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Company’s customer profiles are well balanced in 
Government and Non-Government customers and diversified amongst in various geographies. All trade receivables 
are reviewed and assessed on a quarterly basis.					   

Credit risk arising from investments and balances with banks is limited because the counter parties are banks and 
recognised companies with high credit worthiness.					   

(i)	 Provision for expected credit losses:				 

	 The Company measures Expected Credit Loss (ECL) for financial instruments based on historical trend, industry 
practices and the business environment in which the Company operates.				  

	 For financial assets, a credit loss is the difference between:				  

	 (a) the contractual cash flows that are due to an entity under the contract; and				  

	 (b) the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.					   

	 The Company recognizes in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to 
adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date in accordance with Ind AS 109.

	 In determination of the allowances for credit losses on trade receivables, the Company has used a practical 
expedience by computing the expected credit losses based on ageing matrix, which has taken into account 
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information.				  

(ii)	 The movement of Trade Receivables and Expected Credit Loss are as follows:

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at  
31 March, 2020

Trade Receivables (Gross)  1,456.88  3,391.05 

Less: Expected Credit Loss  (9.36)  (605.71)

       Trade Receivables (Net)  1,447.52  2,785.34 

Financial Instruments and cash deposits				  

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and service standards 
to select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Investments of surplus funds are made only with 
approved counterparties. The maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet is Rs. 2,300.83 
lakhs as at 31.03.2021 and Rs. 3,358.90 lakhs as at 31.03.2020, which is the carrying amount of cash and cash 
equivalents, other bank balances, investments (other than equity investments in subsidiary), trade receivables, 
loans and other financial assets.				  

Liquidity risk					   

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations 
without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity 
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial investments and financial assets (i.e. trade receivables, 
other financial assets) and projected cash flows from operations.	

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of 
working capital loans, letter of credit facility, bank loans and credit purchases.					   

(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities to the contractual 
maturity date:				  

As at 31 March, 2021

Particulars Less than 1 
year

1 to 5 years More than 5 
years

Total

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 
(Including Current Maturities)

 41.77  506.91  -    548.68 

Trade Payables  649.47  -    -    649.47 

Other Financial Liabilities  303.95  -   -  303.95 
Total  995.19  506.91  -    1,502.10 

As at 31 March, 2020

Particulars Less than 1 
year

1 to 5 years More than 5 
years

Total

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 
(Including Current Maturities)

 490.11  466.56  -    956.67 

Trade Payables  1,662.42  -    -    1,662.42 

Other Financial Liabilities  319.41  -   -  319.41 
Total  2,471.94  466.56  -    2,938.50 

Note 41 : Corporate Social Responsibility	

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the Financial Year 2020-21 is Nil as the Company has 
incurred losses in the previous years.

Note 42 : Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars For the year ended
31 March, 2021

For the year ended
31 March, 2020

Other matter (Travel) -  1.31   

Note 43 : Employee Benefits									       

a) 	 Defined Contribution Plans									       

	 The Company’s contribution to the provident Fund and Superannuation funds are charged to the Profit and loss 
statement.									       

	 During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit & loss:

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Contribution to Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund  19.54  29.58 

Contribution to Superannuation Fund  0.73  4.17 

b)	 Post Employment Defined Benefit Plans								      

	 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. As per the 
scheme, the Gratuity Trust fund managed by the Trust, makes payment to vested employees on retirement, 
death, incapacitation or termination/resignation of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s 
eligible salary depending upon the tenure of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. 
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity plan are determined by actuarial valuation as set out in Note 2.15, based upon 
which, the Company makes contribution to the Gratuity fund.

c) 	 Other Long Term Employee Benefit Plan	

	 Leave Encashment Scheme [LES] (Unfunded)	

	 The Company provides for accumulated leave benefit for eligible employees payable at the time of retirement/resignation 
from service as per the policy of the Company, actual number of days outstanding based on last drawn salary. The liabilities 
with regard to leave encashment scheme are determined by actuarial valuation as set out in Note 2.15.	

d)	 Risk Exposure											         

	 Aforesaid post employment defined benefit plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks, most significant 
of which are discount rate risk, salary escalation risk and demographic risk.		  	

(All amounts in c Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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	 Discount Risk											         

	 The Company is exposed to the risk of fall in discount rate. A fall in discount rate will eventually increase the 
ultimate cost of providing the above benefit thereby increasing the value of liability.	

	 Salary Escalation Risk

	 The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participant. 
An increase in the salary of plan participants will increase the plan liabilities.		

	 Demographic Risk											         

	 In the valuation of liability certain demographic (mortality and attrition rates) assumptions are made. The Company 
is exposed to this risk to the extent of actual experience eventually being worse compared to the assumption 
thereby causing an increase in the plan liability.	

Details of Defined Benefits plans-as required by Ind AS-19 Employee Benefits

Particulars Gratuity Funded
Components of employee expenses 2020-21 2019-20
Current service cost  3.58  6.19 
Past service cost  -    -   
Interest cost  7.02  7.01 
Expected return on Plan Assets  (5.29)  (6.46)
Total expenses recognised in the Profit & Loss Statement  5.30  6.73 
Cumulative unrecognised actuarial (gain)/loss opening B/F  (11.20)  (26.38)
Actuarial (gain)/loss-Obligation  (0.64)  9.39 

Actuarial (gain)/loss-plan assets  4.61  5.79 

Total Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive (income)/expenses  (7.23)  (11.20)
Actual Contribution & Benefits payment for the year 2020-21 2019-20
Actual Benefits payments  42.09  22.50 
Actual contributions  0.06  0.05 
Net assets/(liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 2020-21 2019-20
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation  51.34  100.22 
Fair value of Plan Assets  34.23  70.57 
Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)]  (17.11)  (29.66)
Net assets/(liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet  (17.11)  (29.66)
Change in Defined Benefits Obligation during the year 2020-21 2019-20
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the beginning of the year  100.23  100.14 
Current service cost  3.58  6.19 
Interest Cost  7.02  7.01 
Actuarial Losses/(Gains)  (0.64)  9.39 
Benefits paid  58.82  22.50 
Present value of Defined Benefits Obligation as at the end of the year  51.35  100.23 
Change in Fair value of the Plan Assets during the year 2020-21 2019-20
Plan Asset as at the beginning of the year  70.57  92.35 

Actuarial Adjustment  5.02  -   

Expected return on the Plan Assets  5.29  6.46 

Actual Company contributions  0.06  0.05 
Actuarial (Losses)/Gains  (4.61)  (5.79)
Benefits paid  (42.09)  (22.50)
Plan Asset as at the end of the year  34.23  70.57 
Actuarial Assumptions 2020-21 2019-20
Discount rate 7.00% 7.00%
Expected return on plan assets 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate (per annum) (18 to 30 years) 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal rate (per annum) (30 to 44 years) 3.00% 3.00%
Withdrawal rate (per annum) (44 to 60 years) 2.00% 2.00%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%

(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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The expected rate of return on the plan asset (Gratuity funded) is based on the average long term rate of return 
expected on investment of funds during estimated term of obligation.

The assumption of the future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account the inflation, 
seniority, promotion & other relevant factors.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the total plan assets 2020-21 2019-20

Insurer Managed Funds						      100% 100%

Experience Adjustments 2020-21 2019-20

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the end of the year  51.35  100.23 

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year  34.23  70.57 

Funds Status [Surplus/(Deficit)]  (17.11)  (29.66)

Experience adjustment of Plan Liabilities  (17.37)  5.63 

Experience adjustment of Plan Asset  (4.61)  (5.79)

The liability for leave encashment is accounted for on accrual basis on actuarial valuation at the year end.

Sensitivity Analysis for significant assumptions as on 31.03.2021 are as follows:-		

Assumptions Discount rate Future Salary Withdrawal Rate

Sensitivity Analysis 1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation  (2.71)  3.07  3.11  (2.79)  0.36  (0.41)

Sensitivity Analysis for significant assumptions as on 31.03.2020 are as follows:-	

Assumptions Discount rate Future Salary Withdrawal Rate

Sensitivity Analysis 1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation	  (4.34)  4.99  5.04  (4.46)  0.66  (0.74)

The Company expects to contribute ` 4.32 lakhs (Previous year b 7.06 lakhs) to gratuity fund in next year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31.03.2021 is 9 years (as at 31.03.2020:                              
8 years).									      

Estimate of expected benefit payments (In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)	

Particulars (` in lakhs)
01 April, 2021 to 31 March, 2022  13.52 

01 April, 2022 to 31 March, 2023  6.74 

01 April, 2023 to 31 March, 2024  1.56 

01 April, 2024 to 31 March, 2025  1.89 

01 April, 2025 to 31 March, 2026  5.03 

01 April, 2026 onwards  22.60 

Note 44 : Related Party Disclosures	 					   

Pursuant to Ind AS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”, following parties are to be treated as related parties:

(a) 	 Associate Companies:					   
	 Xlerate Driveline India Limited (XDIL)

(b) 	 Entities over which key managerial personnel is able to exercise significant influence:
	 Bharat Gears Limited (BGL)					   
	 Vibrant Reality Infra Private Limited (VRIPL)					   
	 Ultra Consultants Private Limited  (UCPL)					   

(All amounts in c Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



62

Annual Report 2020-21

	 Cliplok Simpak (India) Private Limited  (CSIPL)					   
	 Samreet Investment & Management Consultancy Private Limited  (SIMCPL)					  
	 Gulab Merchandise Private Limited  (GMPL)

(c)	 Key managerial personnel:					   

	 Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar - Chairman & Managing Director					   
	 Mr. Sachit Kanwar - Executive Director - Operations					   
	 Mr. Sameer Kanwar - Non - Executive Director					   
	 Dr. Sanjeev Kumar - Non - Executive Independent Director					   
	 Mr. Pradeep Kumar Mittal - Non - Executive Independent Director					   
	 Mrs. Seethalakshmi Venkataraman - Non - Executive Independent Director					   
	 Mr. Rajiv Chandra Rastogi - Non - Executive Independent Director					   
	 Mr. Naresh Kumar Verma - Non - Executive Director

(d) 	 KMP’s Relative:					   
	 Mr. Praveen Kumar Mittal - Brother of Mr. Pradeep Kumar Mittal					   

Details of transactions with the related parties

Particulars Where control exists

Entities over which 
key managerial 

personnel is able to 
exercise significant 

influence

Key managerial 
personnel

KMP’s Relative

Transaction during the year 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20
Reimbursement of expenses (net)
XDIL  2.75  0.93  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Rent expense
BGL  -    -    4.32  7.16  -    -    -    -   
XDIL  0.44  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
VRIPL  -    -    2.40  4.80  -    -    -    -   
Electricity expense
VRIPL  -    -    0.47  2.11  -    -    -    -   
Interest expense
UCPL  -    -    3.00  0.76  -    -    -    -   
CSIPL  -    -    2.00  0.18  -    -    -    -   
VRIPL  -    -    2.00  0.76  -    -    -    -   
Loan taken
Mr. Naresh Kumar Verma  -    -    -    -    250.00  -    -    -   
XDIL  -    25.00  -    -    -    -    -    -   
UCPL  -    -    -    30.00  -    -    -    -   
CSIPL  -    -    -    20.00  -    -    -    -   
VRIPL  -    -    1.00  20.00  -    -    -    -   
Loan repaid
XDIL  -    25.00  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Managerial remuneration
Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar  -    -    -    -    *  *  -    -   
Mr. Sachit Kanwar**  -    -    -    -    15.35 48.15  -    -   
Director's sitting fees
Mr. Sameer Kanwar  -    -    -    -    0.50  -    -    -   
Dr. Sanjeev Kumar  -    -    -    -    1.05  0.45  -    -   
Mr. Rajiv Chandra Rastogi  -    -    -    -    1.05  1.10  -    -   
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Mittal  -    -    -    -    0.75  0.60  -    -   
Mr. Naresh Kumar Verma  -    -    -    -    0.50  0.10  -    -   
Mrs. Seethalakshmi Venkataraman  -    -    -    -    0.90  0.60  -    -   
Fees for Profeesional services
Mr. Praveen Kumar Mittal  -    -    -    -    -    -    0.50  1.80 
Balances at the end of the year	 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Corporate Guarantee given to 
bank for credit limit sanctioned
XDIL  405.00  405.00  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance payable/receivable

Mr. Sameer Kanwar  -    -    -    -    0.37  -    -    -   

Dr. Sanjeev Kumar  -    -    -    -    0.74  0.18  -    -   

(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Mr. Rajiv Chandra Rastogi  -    -    -    -    0.74  0.62  -    -   

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Mittal  -    -    -    -    0.42  0.50  -    -   

Mr. Naresh Kumar Verma  -    -    -    -    250.37  0.09  -    -   

Mrs. Seethalakshmi Venkataraman  -    -    -    -    0.65  0.36  -    -   

Mr. Praveen Kumar Mittal  -    -    -    -    -    -    0.46  0.95 

XDIL  9.40  6.13  -    -    -    -    -    -   

UCPL  -    -    33.46  30.00  -    -    -    -   
CSIPL  -    -    22.01  20.00  -    -    -    -   
BGL  -    -    24.24  19.47  -    -    -    -   
VRIPL  -    -    40.53  31.66  -    -    -    -   
Guarantee given for credit limits 
taken by Company
VRIPL  -    -    1,419.14  1,877.00  -    -    -    -   

Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar  -    -    -    -    1,920.14  2,545.12  -    -   

* Token remuneration of c 12 (Rupees Twelve) paid to Chairman & Managing Director.

** w.e.f 28 September, 2020 resigned as Joint Managing Director and w.e.f  01 October, 2020 Mr. Sachit Kanwar appointed as Executive 

Director - Operations and token remuneration of ` 6 (Rupees Six) paid.						      	
Note 45 : Financial Instruments

Particulars Notes
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized 
Cost

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized 
Cost

Financial Assets
Investment
Equity Shares (Quoted) 5  172.70  -    -    60.54  -    -   
Equity Shares (Unquoted) 5  178.88  -    -    722.90  -    -   
Loans and Advances 6,14  -    -    19.14  -    -    22.84 
Trade Receivables 7,11  -    -    1,447.52  -    -    2,785.34 
Cash and Bank Balances 12,13  -    -    445.74  -    -    266.74 
Other Financial Assets 8,15  -    -    36.85  -    -    223.45 
Total Financial Assets  351.58  -    1,949.25  783.44  -    3,298.37 
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 20,22  -    -    522.85  -    -    931.86 
Trade Payables 23  -    -    649.47  -    -    1,662.42 
Other Financial Liability 24  -    -    329.77  -    -    344.22 
Total Financial liabilities  -    -    1,502.09  -    -    2,938.50 

Fair Value Hierarchy							     

The Company uses following method of hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments 
by valuation techniques:							     

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).							     

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).	

i) Financial assets and liabilities are measured at recurring fair value measurement at 31 March, 2021

Particulars Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investment in:
Equity Instruments  5  172.70  -    178.88  351.58 

ii) Financial assets and liabilities are measured at recurring fair value measurement at 31 March, 2020

Particulars Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investment in:
Equity Instruments  5  60.54  -    722.90  783.44 

(All amounts in c Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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During the year ended 31.03.2021, there were no transfers between Level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements and 
no transfer into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. There is a transaction/balance under level 3.	

Note 46: Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic				  

The Company has incurred losses during the current year amounting to R 32.28 Lakhs, primarily owing to the lower 
volumes due to continuing slowdown in the EPC industry, ECL provision and decrease in fair value of investments. 
The Company has a positive net worth of R 1319.37 Lakhs and a net current asset position of R 166.71 Lakhs. The 
Company’s operation have also been impacted by the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic whch resulted in an 
interruption in Erection & Supply activity due to nationwide lockdown.

The Company has made an assessment of the impact of the pandemic on its operations and the carrying value of 
Plant & Machinery,Inventory, Receivables and other financial assets, by relying on the internal and external sources of 
information and indicators of economic forecasts. Based on such assessment, the Company is confident of recovering 
the carrying value of these assets as at 31 March, 2021.

Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known  events arising from COVID 19 
pandemic in the preparation of the financial statements. However, the impact assessment of COVID 19 is a continuing 
process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any 
material changes to future economic conditions.

Note 47 : New Accounting Pronouncements				  

a)	 Amendment to Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combinations’ – change in definition of Business

	 The amendments clarify that while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set 
of activities and assets to qualify as a business. The amendments also introduce an optional concentration test 
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. This 
amendment does not have material impact on the Company.

b)	 Amendment to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109 - interest rate benchmark reforms

	 The amendments provide temporary exception from applying specific hedge accounting requirement and allows 
continuation of hedge accounting when a hedging relationship is directly affected by interest rate benchmark 
reform only. The amendment also provides for additional disclosure for hedging relationship that is subject to 
this exception. The Company has floating rate debt linked to LIBOR which has been designated as cash flow 
hedges. However there is no interest rate benchmark reform happened which affect the hedge relationship. This 
amendment does not have material impact on the Company.

c)	 Amendment to Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ - COVID-19 related rent concessions

	 The amendment provides a practical expedient which permits a lease not to assess whether a COVID-19 related 
rent concession is a lease modification. The Company had not applied the practical expedient. This amendment 
does not have material impact on the Company.

d)	 Amendment to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 – definition of ‘material’

	 The amendment is not intend to change the underlying ‘materiality’ concept rather it provides broader guidance 
and make it easy to understand the meaning of ‘material’. This amendment does not have material impact on the 
Company.

e)	 Amendment to Ind AS 10 and Ind AS 37 – material non adjusting event

	 The amendment requires an entity to disclose the nature and estimate of financial effect of a material non-adjusting 
event after the reporting period. Ind AS 37 specifically requires such disclosure of a non- adjusting material 
restructuring plan. This amendment does not have material impact on the Company.

Note 48: Previous year’s figures are reclassified, where necessary, to conform to the current year’s classification.	

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP            
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Surinder Paul Kanwar
Chairman and Managing Director  

(DIN: 00033524)

 Sachit Kanwar        
Executive Director-Operations

(DIN: 02132124)

Sameer Kanwar (Din: 00033622)
Dr. Sanjeev Kumar (Din: 00364416) 
Seethalakshmi Venkataraman (Din: 07156898)
Rajiv Chandra Rastogi (Din: 00035460)
Naresh Kumar Verma (Din: 07087356) 
Directors

Sanjay Nath
Partner
Membership No. 082700

Rajan Malhotra
Chief Executive Officer
(PAN: AAEPM3206C)

Kailash Chandra Yadav
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AAAPY0255B)

Rashmi Aswal
Company Secretary

(PAN: AMEPR6639L)

Date: 22 June, 2021
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Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements 
of Raunaq EPC International Limited (“the Holding 
Company”) and its Associate (the Holding Company 
and its Associate together referred to as “the Group”), 
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
31 March, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Consolidated Other Comprehensive 
Income), Consolidated Statement of changes in equity 
and the Consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 
as amended, (“Ind AS”) other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated state 
of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, and its 
Consolidated profit, Consolidated changes in equity and 
its Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 46 to the consolidated 
financial statements which explains the uncertainties and 
the management’s assessment of the financial impact due to 
the lock-downs and other restrictions and conditions related 
to the Covid-19 pandemic situation, for which a definitive 
assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is highly 
dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion 
is not modified in respect of this matter.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF RAUNAQ EPC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined 
the matters described below to be the key audit matters 
to be communicated in our report.

S. 
No. Key Audit Matter Our response 

1. Accuracy of 
recognition, 
measurement, 
presentation and 
disclosures of 
revenues and 
other related 
balances in view 
of Ind AS 115 
“Revenue from 
Contracts with 
Customers” 

The application 
of the accounting 
standard involves 
certain key 
judgements relating 
to satisfaction 
of performance 
obligations, 
determination of 
transaction price 
of the identified 
performance 
obligations, the 
appropriateness of 
the basis used to 
measure revenue 
recognised over a 
period.

Our audit approach consisted review of 
the design and operating effectiveness 
of the internal controls and substantive 
testing as follows:
• Evaluated the design of internal 

controls relating to revenue 
recognition process.

• Selected a sample of continuing 
and new contracts, and tested the 
operating effectiveness of the internal 
control, relating to satisfaction 
of performance obligations and 
determination of transaction price. 
We carried out a combination of 
procedures involving enquiry and 
observation, reperformance and 
inspection of evidence in respect of 
operation of these controls.

• Selected a sample of continuing 
and new contracts and performed 
the following procedures:
• Read, analysed and 

identified the timing of 
satisfaction of performance 
obligations in these 
contracts.

• Compared these 
performance obligations with 
that identified and recorded 
by the Company.

• Considered the terms of the 
contracts to determine the 
transaction price used to 
compute revenue.

• Samples in respect of 
revenue recorded for time 
and material contracts were 
tested using a combination 
of approved time sheets 
including customer 
acceptances, and historical 
trend of collections and 
disputes.

• Performed analytical 
procedures for 
reasonableness of revenues 
disclosed by type and 
service offerings.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditors’ Report thereon 

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the 
Annual Report, for example, Management Discussion and 
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our 
audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

The other information is expected to be made available to 
us after the date of this auditors’ report. When we read the 
other information, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate 
the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance, consolidated changes in equity 
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance 
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of 
the Companies included in the Group are responsible 
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and  design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements by the Directors of the Parent Company, as 
aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the 
respective Board of Directors of the Companies included 
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of 
the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 
Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.  

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
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a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of the financial statements 
of such entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements of which we are the independent 
auditors. For the other entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements, which have 
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors 
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audits carried out by them. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in: 

(i)	 planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and 

(ii)	 to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 
in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance 
with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one associate, 
whose share of profit is Rs. 34.89 lakhs for the year ended 
on 31 March, 2021 as considered in the consolidated 
financial statements. These financial statements have 
been audited by other auditor whose reports have been 
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect 
of this associate, and our report in terms of sub-section 
(3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid associate, is based solely on the reports of the 
other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and 
our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports 
of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.   	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
our audit we report that:

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books 
and the report of the other auditor.

	 (c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Consolidated Other Comprehensive 
Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account maintained.

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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	 (e)	 On the basis of written representations received 
from the directors of the Parent Company as 
on 31 March, 2021 and taken on record by 
the Board of Directors of the Parent Company 
and the report of the statutory auditor of its 
associate, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on 31 March, 2021 from being appointed as 
a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act. 

	 (f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Group and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate report in 
Annexure ‘A’.

	 (g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended: 

		  In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, 
the remuneration paid by the Parent Company 
to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

	 (h)	 with respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

	 	 i.	 The Consolidated financial statements 
disclose the impact of pending litigations 
on the consolidated financial position of the 
Group – Refer Note 38 to the Consolidated 
financial statements;

		  ii.	 The Group did not have any long term 
contracts including any derivative 
contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses;

		  iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Parent Company and its Associate.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Sanjay Nath
Place: New Delhi 	 Partner
Date: 22 June, 2021	 Membership No.082700
UDIN: 21082700AAABBV1582
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” 
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub section 3 of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Raunaq EPC International Limited (“the Parent 
Company”) and its Associate as of 31 March, 2021 in conjunction 
with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Group are responsible 
for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.                  
A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Parent Company and its Associate, have, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 
2021 based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to one 
associate company, is based on the corresponding report of the 
auditor of such Company incorporated in India.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Sanjay Nath
Place: New Delhi 	 Partner
Date: 22 June, 2021	 Membership No.082700
UDIN: 21082700AAABBV1582
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

as at 31 March, 2021
(All amounts in c Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. As at            
 31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3  366.26  1,817.55 
Capital Work in Progress 3  -    6.62 
Intangible Assets 4  -    6.38 
Financial Assets

a. Investments 5  386.47  60.54 
b. Loans And Advances 6  1.03  20.40 
c. Trade Receivables 7  976.46  227.63 
d. Other Financial Assets 8  30.73  213.50 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9  -    180.26 
Total Non-Current Assets  1,760.95  2,532.88 
Current Assets
Inventories 10  87.10  516.87 
Financial Assets

a. Trade Receivables 11  471.07  3,627.90 
b. Cash And Cash Equivalents 12  90.29  35.65 
c. Bank Balances other than (b) above 13  355.45  267.09 
d. Loans and Advances 14  18.11  44.17 
e. Other Financial Assets 15  6.12  9.95 

Current Tax Assets 16  86.06  137.39 
Other Current Assets 17  381.29  468.34 
Total Current Assets  1,495.49  5,107.36 

Total Assets  3,256.44  7,640.24 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share Capital 18  334.32  334.32 
Other Equity 19  1,019.94  1,171.37 
Total Equity  1,354.26  1,505.69 

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

a. Borrowings 20  506.91  1,277.60 
Provisions 21  17.12  64.27 
Deferred Tax Liability	 9  49.36  -   
Total Non-Current Liabilities  573.39  1,341.87 
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

a. Borrowings 22  15.94  814.78 
b. Trade Payables 23

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises  -    83.04 
Total Outstanding Dues of other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises  649.47  2,502.68 

c. Other Financial Liabilities 24  329.77  376.62 
Other Current Liabilities 25  225.95  685.00 
Provisions 26  107.66  330.56 
Total Current Liabilities  1,328.79  4,792.68 
Total Liabilities  1,902.18  6,134.55 

Total Equity and Liabilities  3,256.44  7,640.24 
Significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements	 1-48

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP            
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Surinder Paul Kanwar
Chairman and Managing Director  

(DIN: 00033524)

 Sachit Kanwar        
Executive Director-Operations

(DIN: 02132124)

Sameer Kanwar (Din: 00033622)
Dr. Sanjeev Kumar (Din: 00364416) 
Seethalakshmi Venkataraman (Din: 07156898)
Rajiv Chandra Rastogi (Din: 00035460)
Naresh Kumar Verma (Din: 07087356) 
Directors

Sanjay Nath
Partner
Membership No. 082700

Rajan Malhotra
Chief Executive Officer
(PAN: AAEPM3206C)

Kailash Chandra Yadav
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AAAPY0255B)

Rashmi Aswal
Company Secretary

(PAN: AMEPR6639L)

Date: 22 June, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

(All amounts in a Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Note No. For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Revenue from operations 27  987.13  6,167.61 

Other income 28  522.56  386.28 
Total revenue/income  1,509.69  6,553.89 
EXPENSES

a. Cost of material consumed 29  42.05  3,645.80 

b.
Changes in inventories of finished goods & work-in-
progress

29A  77.54  (45.09)

c. Employee benefits expenses 30  365.38  912.39 

d. Finance cost 31  149.21  423.54 

e. Depreciation and amortization expenses 32  74.67  181.22 

f. Bad debts written off  165.72  687.05 

g. Allowance for expected credit loss  9.36  559.27 

h. Decrease in fair value of investment  -    399.92 

i Other expenses 33  631.12  1,676.28 
Total expenses  1,515.05  8,440.38 
Profit/(Loss) before share of Profit/(Loss) of Associate  (5.36)  (1,886.49)
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associate  34.89  -   
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax  29.53  (1,886.49)
Exceptional Items  -    -   
Profit/(Loss) before tax  29.53  (1,886.49)
Income tax expenses
a. Current tax  -    -   
b. Tax expense related to prior period  -    -   
Net current tax 35  -    -   
Deferred tax-charge/(credit) 35  24.35  291.17 

Total tax expense  24.35  291.17 
Profit/(Loss) for the year	  5.18  (2,177.66)
Other Comprehensive Income
a. Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss

Income tax effect  -    -   
 -    -   

b. Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan  (2.56)  11.33 

Income tax effect  -    (0.04)
 (2.56)  11.29 

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (a+b)  (2.56)  11.29 
Total comprehensive income for the year  2.62  (2,166.37)

Earning per equity share of [nominal value per share b 10/-   
(31 March, 2020 : b 10/-)]		
Basic earning per share 34  0.15  (65.14)
Diluted earning per share 34  0.15  (65.14)
Significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements 1-48

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP            
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Surinder Paul Kanwar
Chairman and Managing Director  

(DIN: 00033524)

 Sachit Kanwar        
Executive Director-Operations

(DIN: 02132124)

Sameer Kanwar (Din: 00033622)
Dr. Sanjeev Kumar (Din: 00364416) 
Seethalakshmi Venkataraman (Din: 07156898)
Rajiv Chandra Rastogi (Din: 00035460)
Naresh Kumar Verma (Din: 07087356) 
Directors

Sanjay Nath
Partner
Membership No. 082700

Rajan Malhotra
Chief Executive Officer
(PAN: AAEPM3206C)

Kailash Chandra Yadav
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AAAPY0255B)

Rashmi Aswal
Company Secretary

(PAN: AMEPR6639L)

Date: 22 June, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
for the year ended 31 March, 2021

(All amounts in c Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March, 2021

For the year ended  
31 March, 2020

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit/(Loss) before tax  (5.36)  (1,886.49)
Adjustments for:

Net gain on fair value of financial assets through statement of profit & loss  (112.16)  399.92 

Expected credit loss  9.36  559.27 

Depreciation and amortization  74.67  181.22 

Loss on sale of fixed assets  2.78  4.36 

Interest and other charges  149.21  416.67 

Interest income  (33.37)  (41.99)

Profit on sale of Asset  (0.03)  (0.06)
Operating profit before working capital changes  85.10  (367.10)
Changes in working capital

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Trade receivables  2,077.28  (644.00)

Inventories  (76.68)  (46.82)

Long term loans & advances  1.50  0.34 

Short term loans & advances  2.20  (30.54)

Non-current trade receivables  (748.82)  2,071.40 

Other current financial assets  3.83  4.34 

Other non current financial assets  182.77  39.49 

Other current assets  90.38  178.06 
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:

Trade payables  (1,012.95)  (1,233.35)

Provisions  (83.72)  1.09 

Other current financial liabilities  -    (5.06)

Other current liabilities  (376.64)  (26.71)
Cash generated from operations  144.25  (58.85)

Direct Taxes paid (net)  -    (1.41)
Net cash from/(used) in operating activities  144.25  (60.26)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of fixed assets  (0.47)  (58.15)

Sale of fixed assets/Investment  560.76  9.04 

Interest received  33.37  41.99 

Investment in deposits  (124.82)  359.92 
Net cash from/(used) in investment activities  468.84  352.80 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from long term borrowings  54.61  231.16 

Proceeds/(repayments) from short term borrowings  (449.36)  (199.05)

(Repayment) of long term borrowings  (13.25)  (22.91)

Interest and other charges paid  (149.21)  (416.67)

Dividend including dividend distribution tax paid  (1.71)  (1.34)
Net cash from/(used) in financing activities  (558.92)  (408.81)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  54.17  (116.28)
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents  42.71  160.23 
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents  96.88  43.95 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
for the year ended 31 March, 2021.... Contd. 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statements
	 (All amounts in c Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March, 2021
 As at 

31 March, 2020 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following:

Cash on hand  0.42  1.29 

Balance with scheduled banks:

in Current accounts  96.46  42.66 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    96.88  43.95 

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including changes arising from cash flows and non cash changes 

as per IND AS 7 - statement of cash flows are shown below	

Particulars
 As at 

31 March, 2021
 As at 

31 March, 2020 

Opening Balance of Borrowings at beginning of the year  956.67  1,651.95 

Net Addition in Lease Liability during the year  -    456.04 

Net Cash Flow from/(Used in) Financing Activities *  (408.00)  10.44 

Closing Balance of Borrowings and Lease Liability at end of the year  548.67  2,118.43 

*	 Excluding proceeds from issuance of equity shares, securities premium, finance costs, dividend and dividend 
distribution tax.	

(b)	 The above Cash flow statement is prepared as per “Indirect method” specified in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash 
Flows”.				  

This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash flow referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP            
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Surinder Paul Kanwar
Chairman and Managing Director  

(DIN: 00033524)

 Sachit Kanwar        
Executive Director-Operations

(DIN: 02132124)

Sameer Kanwar (Din: 00033622)
Dr. Sanjeev Kumar (Din: 00364416) 
Seethalakshmi Venkataraman (Din: 07156898)
Rajiv Chandra Rastogi (Din: 00035460)
Naresh Kumar Verma (Din: 07087356) 
Directors

Sanjay Nath
Partner
Membership No. 082700

Rajan Malhotra
Chief Executive Officer
(PAN: AAEPM3206C)

Kailash Chandra Yadav
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AAAPY0255B)

Rashmi Aswal
Company Secretary

(PAN: AMEPR6639L)

Date: 22 June, 2021
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Consolidated STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A.	 Equity Share Capital
	 (All amounts in c Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Amount
As at 31 March, 2020 18  334.32 

Change in equity share capital  -   

As at 31 March, 2021 18  334.32 

B.	 Other Equity

Particulars Notes

Reserves and Surplus Other 
Comprehensive 

Income
Total Other 

EquityCapital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at 01 April, 2019  0.67  162.43  1,525.27  1,609.70  39.67  3,337.74 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    (2,177.66)  -    (2,177.66)

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on 

defined benefit plan
 -    -    -    -    11.29  11.29 

Total comprehensive income 19  0.67  162.43  1,525.27  (567.96)  50.96  1,171.37 

Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners:

Remeasurement of defined benefit 

plans (net of tax)
 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance at 31 March, 2020 19  0.67  162.43  1,525.27  (567.96)  50.96  1,171.37 

Balance at 01 April, 2020  0.67  162.43  1,525.27  (723.96)  52.91  1,017.32 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    5.18  -    5.17 

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on 

defined benefit plan
 -    -    -    -    (2.56)  (2.56)

Total comprehensive income 19  0.67  162.43  1,525.27  (718.78)  50.35  1,019.94 

Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners:

Remeasurement of defined benefit 

plans (net of tax)
 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance at 31 March, 2021 19  0.67  162.43  1,525.27  (718.78)  50.35  1,019.94 

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.            For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP            
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Surinder Paul Kanwar
Chairman and Managing Director  

(DIN: 00033524)

 Sachit Kanwar        
Executive Director-Operations

(DIN: 02132124)

Sameer Kanwar (Din: 00033622)
Dr. Sanjeev Kumar (Din: 00364416) 
Seethalakshmi Venkataraman (Din: 07156898)
Rajiv Chandra Rastogi (Din: 00035460)
Naresh Kumar Verma (Din: 07087356) 
Directors

Sanjay Nath
Partner
Membership No. 082700

Rajan Malhotra
Chief Executive Officer
(PAN: AAEPM3206C)

Kailash Chandra Yadav
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AAAPY0255B)

Rashmi Aswal
Company Secretary

(PAN: AMEPR6639L)

Date: 22 June, 2021



74 75

Annual Report 2020-21

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note Particulars

1.	 CORPORATE OVERVIEW		

	 Raunaq EPC International Limited (‘the Company’) is engaged in Engineering Contracting Business, established 
in 1965 and primarily in the service of core infrastructural and industrial sectors in India, namely Power, Chemical, 
Hydro-carbon, Metal and Automobile sectors and manufacturing of Automobile components through its Associate. 
The Company is a Limited Company and has its Registered Office in Haryana, India. Its shares are listed on the BSE 
Limited. The Company, its Associate collectively referred to as the “Group” here under.		

	 These consolidated financial statements are approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company 
in their meeting held on 22 June, 2021.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES		

	 This Note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated 
Financial Statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise 
stated.

2.1	 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	

	 a.	 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

		  The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under  Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rule 3 of 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the 
Act. 

	 b.	 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:-

	 	 •	  Certain Financial Assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

	 	 •	  Defined benefit plans - Plan assets measured at fair value

	 c.	 Loss of Control

		  When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it de-recognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and 
any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the statement of Profit 
and loss. The remaining interest in the former subsidiary continue to be measured at cost under “Investment in 
Associate”.

	 d. 	 Equity Accounted Investees:

		  An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant Influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over 
those policies.

		  The Group’s investments in its associate is accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, 
the investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted 
to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date.

2.2	 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY	

	 These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the functional currency 
of each Group’s entities and all amount are rounded to the nearest lakhs and two decimals thereof, except as stated 
otherwise.					   

2.3	 USE OF ESTIMATES	

	 The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported account of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.	

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are known or materialized. 	
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Note Particulars

2.4	 REVENUE RECOGNITION	

	 a.	 REVENUE FROM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

		  In case of Parent Company, contract revenue is recognized under the fixed price contract. Contract Revenue is 
recognized in the year in which the services are rendered. In fixed price contract, revenue is recognised based 
on actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided. 
This is determined based on the actual work done approved by the customer.

		  Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any 
resulting increase or decrease in estimated revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which 
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the management. Provision for expected loss 
is recognized immediately when it is probable that the total estimated contract costs will exceed the total contract 
revenue.

		  When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognized only 
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.

		  Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent 
that may have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured and received from 
customer. 

	 b.	 REVENUE FROM SALE OF GOODS

		  Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services including export benefits thereon are recognised at the 
point in time when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of 
goods or rendering of services.

		  Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, 
price concessions and incentives, if any.

		  The Company provides normal warranty provisions for manufacturing defects on all its product sold, in line 
with industry practice. The Company does not provide any extended warranty or maintenance contracts to its 
customers.

	 c.	 OTHERS ITEMS OF REVENUE

		  Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
effective interest rate method.

		  Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

		  Other items like extra items claim, insurance claims, any receipts on account of pending income tax, sales tax, 
GST and excise duty assessments, where quantum of accruals cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, 
are recognized as income only when revenue is virtually certain which generally coincides with receipts.

2.5	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT	

	 Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost net of tax/duty credit availed less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
items.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is 
derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.	

	 The items of property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for use are disclosed as Capital work-in- progress 
and are carried at historical cost.

	 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 
greater than its recoverable amount.	

	 Property, Plant and Equipment are eliminated from the financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from 
active use.	

	 Gains and losses on disposal or retirement of assets are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. 
These are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.	

	 Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values on the basis 
of useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Act, which are also supported.	
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Note Particulars

	 The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.	

	 The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at end of 
each financial year and any changes there-in are considered as change in estimate and accounted prospectively.

2.6	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)	

	 Intangible assets (Computer Software) are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impaired loss, if any. 
Computer Software for internal use which is primarily acquired is capitalized. Subsequently, costs associated with 
maintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes licenses fees, cost of 
implementation, system integration services etc. where applicable.	

	 The Group amortises intangible assets (Computer Software) with a finite useful life using the straight line method over 
a period of (3/5 years) in Holding and (6 years) in Associate.	

2.7	 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS	

	 The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing of an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset recoverable 
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset or Cash-generating unit (CGU) fair value less cost of 
disposal and its fair value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to 
its recoverable amount.	

	 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
In determining the fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken in account. If no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impaired losses are recognised in statement 
of profit and loss.

2.8	 INVENTORIES	

	 Raw material, stores, work-in-progress and traded goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
However, these items are considered to be realisable at cost if the finished products in which they will be used, are 
expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase and other cost incurred in 
bringing them to their present location and condition. The cost, in general, is determined under First in First Out 
(FIFO) Method in Parent Company and under weighted average method in Associate Company.	

	 Contract cost incurred related to future activity of the contract are recognised as an asset provided it is probable that 
they will be recovered during the contract price. Such cost represent the amount due from customer and are often 
classified as contract work-in-progress.	

2.9	 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS	

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 
Subsequently monetary items are translated at closing exchange rates of balance sheet date and the resulting 
exchange difference recognised in Profit and Loss. Difference arising on settlement of monetary items are also 
recognised in profit or loss.	

	 Non-monetary items that are carried in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rate at the dates of the transaction.

2.10	EARNINGS PER SHARE	

	 Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings 
considered in ascertaining the Group’s earning per share is the net profit or loss for the period. The weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as 
bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, if any, that have changed the number of equity 
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company and the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.	

2.11	BORROWING COSTS	

	 Borrowing cost specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use is capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other 
borrowing costs are charged to revenue in the period in which it is incurred. Borrowing costs consists of interest and 
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other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange 
difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost. 	

	 Finance costs will normally include:	

	 i)	  interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method as described in Ind AS 109.

	 ii)	  the unwinding of the effect of discounting provisions.

2.12	PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES	

	 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.	

	 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimates of the expenditure required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is 
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability 
is not considered. However, a disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising 
from past event, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events 
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or 
a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.	

2.13	DIVIDEND	

	 Dividend on equity shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividend 
are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Board of Directors.	

2.14	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	

	 For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and at bank, 
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investment with original maturities of three months or 
less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value.	 	

2.15	EMPLOYEE BENEFITS	

	 a.	 Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss of the year in 
which the related service are rendered.

	 b.	 Compensated absence is accounted for using the project unit credit method, on the basis of actuarial valuation 
carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to profit and loss in the 
period in which they arise.

	 c.	 Contribution payable by the Group to the concerned government authorities in respect of provident fund, family 
pension fund and employee state insurance are defined contribution plans. The contributions are recognised 
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related 
service. The Group does not have any further obligation in this respect, beyond such contribution.

	 d.	 In Parent Company, certain employees are participated in a defined contribution plan of superannuation. 
The Parent Company has no further obligation to plan beyond its monthly contribution which are periodically 
contributed to a trust fund, the corpus of which is invested with the Life Insurance Corporation of India. There is 
no such scheme in the Associate Company.

	 e.	 The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plan, is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on 
the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains 
and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited 
to other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in statement of profit 
and loss.

		  Parent Company operates a defined benefit plan for gratuity, which requires contributions to be made to a 
separately administered fund. The fund is managed by trust. The corpus of which is invested with the Life 
Insurance Corporation of India. Gratuity is unfunded in case of Associate Company.
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2.16	LEASES	

	 Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
leases. When acquired, such assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease payments at 
the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense 
on a straight line basis in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease term.	

2.17	INCOME TAXES	

	 Income tax expenses comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expenses are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss except that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in those case it is recognised 
in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’. Current Income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount 
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the balances sheet date.	

	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realized.		

	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the year in which 
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the 
substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred 
income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of associate where it is expected that earnings of the 
associate will not be distributed in foreseeable future. The Group off sets current tax assets and Current tax liabilities, 
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it indents either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. The income tax provision of the interim period 
is made based on the best estimate of the annual average tax rate expected to be applicable for the full financial 
year.	

2.18	FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS	

	 A financial instrument is any contract that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.	

	 a.	 Financial Assets

		  Initial recognition and measurement

		  All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

		  Subsequent measurement

		  Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss depending on 
its business model for managing those financial assets and the asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.

		  Derecognition

		  The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets to 
another entity.

		  Impairment of Financial Assets

		  The Parent Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment 
loss on the financial assets. If credit risk has not increased significantly 12 months ECL is used to provide the 
impairment loss. If credit risk has increased significantly lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit 
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

		  In Associate Company, an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for 
each financial asset.

		  ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original 
EIR.
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		  ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expenses in 
the statement of profit & loss.

	 b.	 Financial Liabilities

		  Initial recognition and measurement

		  Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss, 
loans and borrowings or payable.

		  All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

		  The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

		  Subsequent measurement

		  The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification described below: 

		  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

		  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the 
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships. All change in the fair value of such 
liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

		  Loan and borrowings

		  After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized costs 
using EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well 
as through the EIR amortization process.

		  Derecognition

		  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.	

2.19	SEGMENT REPORTING	

	 Operating systems are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker (CODM). The Managing Director has been identified as CODM and he is responsible for allocating 
the resources, assess the financial performance and position of the Group and make strategic decision. Refer note 
37 for segment information presented.	

2.20	CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS	

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates, 
judgement and assumptions which affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date, 
reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosure of contingent asset and liabilities as at the 
balance sheet date.	

	 The areas involving critical estimates or judgement are:	

	 i.	 Critical estimates	

		  a.	 Measurement of defined benefit obligations - Note 43

		  b.	 Estimated useful life of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment - Note 2.5 and 2.6

		  c.	 Estimated fair value of financial instruments - Note 45

		  d.	 Recognition of revenue - Note 2.4

		  e.	 Provision for expected credit losses - Note 40

	 ii.	 Significant Judgements	

		  a.	 Designating financial asset/liability fair value through profit or loss so as to reduce/eliminate accounting 
mismatch.

		  b.	 Probability of an outflow of resources to settle an obligation resulting in recognition of provision.

	 The estimates, judgement and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon Management’s 
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances and as at the date of financial statements. Accounting estimates 
could differ from period to period and accordingly appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management 
becomes aware of the changes. Actual results could differ from the estimates.	

Note Particulars
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Note 4 : Intangible Assets 

Particulars Software Total

As at 31 March, 2020

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  53.19  53.19 

Addition  1.70  1.70 

Disposals/transfers  12.51  12.51 

Closing gross carrying amount  42.38  42.38 
Accumulated Depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation  34.01  34.01 

Depreciation charged during the year  13.87  13.87 

Disposals/transfers  11.88  11.88 

Closing accumulated depreciation  36.00  36.00 
Net carrying amount  6.38  6.38 
As at 31 March, 2021
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  33.23  33.23 

Addition  -    -   

Disposals/transfers  -    -   

Closing gross carrying amount  33.23  33.23 
Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation  29.25  29.25 

Depreciation charged during the year  3.98  3.98 

Disposals/transfers  -    -   

Closing accumulated depreciation  33.23  33.23 
Net carrying amount  -    -   

Note 5 : Non-current Investments 

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Investments in equity instruments			 

A. Investment in Associate company (At cost)

Unquoted

37,06,159 (31 March, 2020 : 1,48,77,038) Equity shares of ` 10/- each

178.88  -   fully paid up in Xlerate Driveline India Limited

Less:- Allowance for Impairment losses  -    -   

Add:- Amount of profit sharing  34.89  -   

Sub-total		   213.77  -   

B. Investment in Others

Quoted

At fair value through profit and loss (FVPL) 2,36,097 (31 March, 2020 : 

 2,36,097) Equity shares of c 10/- each fully paid up in Bharat Gears Limited  172.70  60.54 

Sub-total  172.70  60.54 

Total  386.47  60.54 

(All amounts in b Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 6 : Non-current Loans and Advances

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Capital advances  -    3.06 

Security deposit

Unsecured, considered good  1.03  17.34 

Total  1.03  20.40 

Note 7 : Non-current Trade Receivables

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Trade receivables including retention money  976.46  227.63 

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  9.36  17.71 

Trade receivables - credit impaired  (9.36)  (17.71)

Total  976.46  227.63 

Note 8 : Other Non-current Financial Assets

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Long Term Deposits with Banks with Maturity period more than 12 months  30.73  213.50 

[Refer (a) below]

Total  30.73  213.50 

(a)	 ^ 30.73 Lakhs (31 March, 2020 : ` 213.50 Lakhs) held as Margin money against bank guarantees.

Note 9 : Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March, 2021
Charged/

(credit) during 
the year

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Deferred tax assets on account of:

a) Provision for doubtful advances  -    -    -   

b) Employees Benefits  -    -    6.36 

c) Income Tax losses  -    -    142.92 

d) Unabsorbed Depreciation  -    -    77.24 

e) Finance lease  -    -    0.31 

f) Expected credit loss (ECL)  -    -    -   

Total deferred tax assets  -    -    226.83 

MAT credit entitlement

Deferred tax liabilities on account of:

a) Difference between book and tax depreciation  (20.20)  -    (46.57)

a) Income on Fair valuation of shares of Bharat Gears Limited	  (29.16)  -    -   

Total deferred tax liabilities  (49.36)  -    (46.57)

Total deferred tax (net)  (49.36)  -    180.26 

(All amounts in b Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 10 : Inventories

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Raw Material & Components  -    291.66 

Stock-in trade-traded goods  14.92  96.87 

Work-in progress  72.18  108.03 

Stores Consumables  -    20.31 
Total  87.10  516.87 

Note 11 : Current Trade Receivables

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated
Trade receivables  471.07  3,627.90 

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  -    588.00 

Trade receivables - credit impaired  -    (588.00)
Total  471.07  3,627.90 

Note 12 : Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Balance with Banks
In current account  89.87  34.36 

Cash on hand  0.42  1.29 
Total  90.29  35.65 

Note 13 : Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Other Balances
Earmarked balances with banks for:
Unpaid Dividends  6.59  8.30 
Fixed deposits with various authorities
Margin money against bank guarantees and others  348.86  258.79 

Total  355.45  267.09 

Note 14 : Current Loans and Advances

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Unsecured, Considered good
Security deposits  6.67  5.20 

Loans and advances to employee  11.44  15.10 

Duties & taxes  -    22.14 

Duty drawback receivable  -    0.24 

Export incentive receivable  -    1.49 
Total  18.11  44.17 

Note 15 : Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Accrued interest on deposits with Banks and others  6.12  9.95 
Total  6.12  9.95 

(All amounts in b Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 16 : Current Tax Assets

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Current Tax Assets (net of provision)  86.06  137.39 
Total  86.06  137.39 

Note 17 : Other Current Assets

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

 As at 
31 March, 2020

Unsecured considered good

Prepaid expenses  31.21  47.79 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received  163.51  159.31 

Balance with Government authorities  186.57  255.44 

Others  -    5.80 

Total  381.29  468.34 

Note 18 : Equity Share Capital

Particulars
As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020

No. of Shares c in Lakhs No. of Shares a in Lakhs

Authorized:

Equity shares of ` 10 each (31 March, 2020 ` 10 each)  3,50,00,000 3500.00  3,50,00,000 3500.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

Equity shares of ` 10 each (31 March, 2020 ` 10 each) 33,43,243 334.32 33,43,243 334.32

Total 334.32 334.32

The Parent Company has one class of equity share having a par value of c 10/- per share. Each shareholder is 
eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity 
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Parent Company after distribution of all preferential 
amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.			 

Reconciliation of Shares Issued

As no fresh issue of shares or reduction in capital was made during the current year as well as during the previous 
period, hence there is no change in the opening and closing capital. Accordingly, reconciliation of share capital has not 
been given.				  

Details of Equity Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Parent Company

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020

No. of Shares % No. of 
Shares %

Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar  14,66,695 43.87  14,66,695 43.87

Strategic Capital Partners Private Limited  2,45,316 7.34  2,45,316  7.34 

Soham Ashok kumar Shah  2,00,972 6.01  2,35,972  7.06 

(All amounts in b Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 19 : Other Equity

Particulars Refer following 
items

As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Capital Reserve 19(a)  0.67  0.67 

Securities Premium Reserve 19(b)  162.43  162.43 

General Reserve 19(c)  1,525.27  1,525.27 

Retained Earnings 19(d)  (668.43)  (517.00)
Total  1,019.94  1,171.37 

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

a. Capital Reserve-Balance at the beginning and end of the year  0.67  0.67 

b. Securities Premium Reserve-Balance at the beginning and end of the year  162.43  162.43 

c. General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,525.27  1,525.27 

Add: Transferred from Retained Earnings  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  1,525.27  1,525.27 

d. Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  (671.05)  1,649.37 

Profit for the year  5.18  (2,177.66)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax)  (2.56)  11.29 

Balance at the end of the year  (668.43)  (517.00)
Total  1,019.94  1,171.37 

Nature and purpose of Reserves				  

Capital Reserve: Represents the reserves created as a result of forfeiture of shares of the Parent Company. Capital 
reserve will be utilized for issue of fully paid bonus shares.

Securities Premium Reserve: The amount received from share holders in excess of face value of the equity 
shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve and will be utilized as per provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.	

General Reserve: The Parent Company has transferred a portion of the net profit before declaring dividend to general 
reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. General Reserve will be utilized as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013. The same is a free reserve and available for distribution.	

Note 20 : Non-current Borrowings

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Secured Borrowings
Term loans from Banks  18.31  31.56 

Unsecured Borrowings

1,25,000, 10% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of R 100/- 
each fully paid up	

 -    125.00 

Unsecured Financial Lease Obligations
- Factory Sheds  -    456.04 

Loan from Corporate	

- Companies under joint control  236.00  365.00 

- Others  252.60  300.00 
Total  506.91  1,277.60 

(All amounts in b Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Rupee Term Loans from Banks:
a.	 Term Loan from bank c 18.31 Lakhs (31 March, 2020 : c 31.56 Lakhs) was secured by way of hypothecation/

exclusive charge on assets financed. Repayable along with interest at the rate of 8% p.a. in 60 monthly installments 
finaced by HDFC Bank Ltd.		

b.	 The preference shares are redeemable at par at any time before twenty years from the date of the allotment          
(i.e. 21-Sep-2015) in one or more tranches in accordance with Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013.		

c.	 Loan from Corporates : Repayable at the end of 5/3 years and interest is charged at the rate of 9% p.a/10% p.a. 	

d.	 Loan from others : Loan is non-interest bearing and Repayable at the end of 5 years or repayable at the end of 5 
years and interest is charged at the rate of 9% p.a. 

Note 21 : Non-current Provisions

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences  13.53  49.06 

Provision for Gratuity  3.59  15.21 
Total  17.12  64.27 

Note 22 : Current Borrowings

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Secured Borrowings
Working capital loans repayable on demand from

Bank - Cash Credit (CC) [refer (i)]  -    204.48 
NSIC RMA Account [refer (ii)]  15.94  393.17 
Bank - Overdraft Facility (OD)[refer (iii)]  -    167.13 

Unsecured Borrowings
     a.  Loan from director  -    50.00 

Total  15.94  814.78 

Working capital loans repayable on demand from banks			 

(i)	 In case of Parent Company, Working capital loan from Banks were secured by first charge by way of hypothecation 
on entire current assets including stock, stores, trade receivables etc., and also 1st charge by way of hypothecation 
on movable fixed assets (other than those which are exclusively charged in favour of the respective lenders) 
ranking pari passu amongst the Banks on the point of security. In case of Associate Company, Secured by first 
charge by way of hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, stock-in-process, finished goods, stores & spares and 
Book-Debts/receivables and advance to suppliers.

(ii)	 Secured against bank guarantee issued by State Bank of India and Punjab National Bank (Previously Oriental 
Bank of Commerce). 	

Overdraft Facility from bank			 

(iii) 	 Overdraft facility from bank are secured against the security of the Fixed deposit of Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar, 
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

Note 23 : Trade Payables

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    83.04 

Total outstanding dues of Trade Payable other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 649.47  2,502.68 

Total  649.47  2,585.72 

(i)	 There were no amounts outstanding to be paid to micro and small enterprises registered under the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) except as disclosed above.

(ii)	 No interest is paid/payable during the year to any micro or small enterprise registered under the MSMED.	

(All amounts in b Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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(iii)	 No amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year and no amount of further interest 
remaining due and payable in succeeding years.	

(iv)	 The above information takes into account only those suppliers who have responded to the enquiries made by the 
Company for this purpose.

Note 24 : Other Current Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note 20)  25.82  26.05 

Unpaid dividend  6.59  8.30 

Employee dues  205.77  216.32 

Creditors for expenses  57.39  71.20 

Interest payable  34.20  23.59 

Payables on purchase of fixed assets & CWIP  -    5.90 

Security deposit from customers  -    25.26 
Total  329.77  376.62 

Note 25 : Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Statutory dues  42.24  79.44 

Contractually reimbursable expenses  19.98  23.49 

Contract mobilization advances from customers  163.73  499.60 

Customer credit balances  -    5.48 

Other payables  -    76.99 

Total  225.95  685.00 

Note 26 : Current Provisions

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for compensated absences  11.59  29.66 

Provision for Gratuity  13.52  29.66 
Provision-others

Provision for other outstanding liabilities  82.55  105.04 

Provision for Turnover Discounts  -    94.65 

Other Provisions  -    71.55 

Total  107.66  330.56 

Note 27 : Revenue from Operations

Particulars
For the Year 

ended 31 March, 
2021

For the Year 
ended 31 March, 

2020

Sales of service  987.13  1,853.13 

Sales of product  -    4,221.53 

Sale of scrap  -    79.72 

Others  -    13.23 

Total  987.13  6,167.61 

(All amounts in b Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 28 : Other Income

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Interest income  33.37  41.99 

Net Gain/(loss) on fair value of financial assets through Statement of 
Profit & loss (FVPL)

 112.16  -   

Amount received from revenue authorities  -    -   

Foreign exchange fluctuation gain  -    2.12 

Other non-operating income  377.03  342.17 

Total  522.56  386.28 

Note 29 : Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Opening stock  10.42  305.71 

Add: Purchases during the year  46.55  3,642.17 

Less: Closing stock  14.92  302.08 

Net material consumed  42.05  3,645.80 

Total  42.05  3,645.80 

Note 29A : Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Work-in-Progress

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Inventories (at the end of the year)

- Finished goods  -    86.45 

- Work-in-progress  (77.54)  108.03 

Sub Total  (77.54)  194.48 

Inventories (at the beginning of the year)

- Finished goods  -    38.99 

- Work-in-progress  -    110.40 

Sub Total  -    149.39 

Net (increase)/decrease  77.54  (45.09)

Note 30 : Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

a. Salaries and wages  319.77  808.67 

b. Contributions to provident and other fund  21.46  45.80 

c. Gratuity fund contribution (Refer note 43)  11.42  27.25 

d. Staff welfare expenses  12.73  30.67 

Total  365.38  912.39 

(All amounts in b Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 31 : Finance Cost

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

a. Interest expenses on:

Borrowings  67.22  238.90 

Lease factory sheds  -    54.72 

b. Other borrowing costs  81.99  129.92 

(Bank and other financial charges)

Total  149.21  423.54 

Note 32 : Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  70.69  167.35 

Amortization of intangible assets  3.98  13.87 
Total  74.67  181.22 

Note 33 : Other Expenses

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Consumption of stores and spare parts  85.86  233.58 

Job work expenses  -    160.90 

Erection expenses  365.26  429.03 

Power and fuel  5.19  43.72 

Hire charges  14.61  54.61 

Marketing service fee  -    154.32 

Other marketing and selling expense  -    90.31 

Travelling & conveyance  33.21  66.52 

Rent  23.41  27.54 

Car hire expenses  -    7.35 

Repairs and maintenance  1.44  22.74 

Insurance  11.92  20.47 

Rates and taxes  10.25  12.61 

Warranty claim expenses  -    41.55 

Freight and forwarding  7.74  151.01 

Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below)  4.02  5.81 

Loss on fixed assets sold  2.78  4.36 

Legal & professional charges  32.26  67.07 

Miscellaneous expenses  33.17  82.78 
Total  631.12  1,676.28 

Auditors’ Remuneration paid/payable for the year

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Statutory audit fee  2.50  3.10 

Limited review and other certifications  1.52  2.51 

Reimbursement  -    0.20 
Total  4.02  5.81 
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Note 34 : Earnings Per Share

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 33,43,243 33,43,243

Profit after tax available for shareholders  5.17  (2,177.66)

Basic & diluted earnings per share  0.15  (65.14)

Face value per share  10.00  10.00 

Note 35 : Tax Reconciliation			 

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit as per Ind AS 12:	

Income Tax Expenses

This note provides an analysis of the Group income tax expenses that how the tax expenses is affected by non-
assessable and non-deductible items:

Particulars  2020-21  2019-20 

Income Tax Expenses

Current tax for the year  -    -   

Adjustment for current tax of prior period  -    -   

Total current tax expenses	  -    -   

Deferred tax

Increase/(Decrease) in deferred tax assets  -    (332.69)

(Increase)/Decrease in deferred tax liabilities  (24.36)  41.52 

Total deferred tax income/(expenses)  (24.36)  (291.17)

Income tax expenses  24.36  291.17 

Reconciliation of tax expenses and accounting profit multiplied by applicable Indian tax rate:		

Particulars  2020-21  2019-20 
Profit before income taxes  (5.36)  (1,886.49)

Enacted tax rate in India (%)-In Parent Company 26.00% 26.00%

Enacted tax rate in India (%)-In Associate Company 26.00% 26.00%

Computed expected tax expenses  -    -   

Tax effect due to non-taxable income for Indian tax purposes  (29.16)  -   

Tax reversals  -    -   

Effect of non-deductible expenses  29.16  -   

Others  24.36  291.17 

Income tax expenses  24.36  291.17 

Note 36 : Disclosure required pursuant to Ind AS - 36 “Impairment of Assets”			 

The Group has carried out impairment test on its fixed assets as on the date of Balance Sheet and the Management 
is of the opinion that there is no asset for which provision for impairment is required to be made as per Ind AS - 36 
“Impairment of Assets”.			 

Note 37 : Operating Segment Information					   

a) 	 As per Ind AS-108 “Operating Segment” the Group has considered business segment as the reportable segment 
for the purpose of segment reporting disclosure. The business segments are construction activity (civil, mechanical 
and engineering) and manufacturing of Automobile Components. The above segment have been identified taking 
into account the organisation structure as well as the differing risks and returns of these segments and so the 
Segment revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities.					   
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Financial year 2020-21

Particulars Construction 
Activity

Auto Mobile 
Components Total

Segment Revenue  987.13  -    987.13 

Segment Expenses  1,515.05  -    1,515.05 

Segment Profit  (527.92)  -    (527.92)

Segment Assets  3,042.68  -    3,042.68 

Segment Liabilities  1,892.78  -    1,892.78 

Financial year 2019-20

Particulars Construction 
Activity

Auto Mobile 
Components Total

Segment Revenue  1,853.13  4,314.48  6,167.61 

Segment Expenses  4,089.48  4,350.90  8,440.38 

Segment Profit  (2,236.35)  (36.42)  (2,272.77)

Segment Assets  4,387.03  3,278.19  7,665.22 

Segment Liabilities  3,752.15  2,407.37  6,159.52 

b) 	 The revenue of the Group from the external customers is attributed to (i) the Group’s country of domicile i.e. India 
and (ii) all foreign countries in total from which the Group derives revenue.	

Particulars For the Year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended 
31 March, 2020

Within India  987.13  6,064.16 

Outside India  -    103.45 
Total  987.13  6,167.61 

Note 38 : Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Contingent liabilities

a. Guarantees/Letter of Credit given by the banks which are counter 
guaranteed by the Group and secured against Fixed and Current 
Assets		

 1,920.14  2,378.00 

b.
Others where Group had gone in to appeals before appropriate 
authorities:		

-Sales Tax  20.29  20.29 

-Income Tax  74.59  44.83 

c. Corporate Guarantee  150.05  -   

Total  2,165.07  2,443.12 

Note 39 : Capital Management					  

The Group Capital management objective is to maximize the total shareholder’s return by optimizing cost of capital 
through flexible capital structure that supports growth. Group ensure optimal credit risk profile to maintain/enhance 
credit rating.

The Group determines the amount of capital requirement on the basis of annual operating plan and long-term strategic 
plans. The finding requirements are met through internal accruals and long term/short term borrowings. The Group 
monitors the capital structure on the basis of Net debts to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of 
the Group.					   

For the purpose of Group capital management, equity includes paid up equity share capital and reserves and surplus 
and Debt comprises of long term borrowings including current maturities of these borrowings.
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The following table summarizes long term debt and equity of the Group:	

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at 
31 March, 2020

Equity Share Capital  334.32  334.32 

Other Equity  1,019.93  1,171.37 

Total Equity  1,354.25  1,505.69 

Long Term Debt  532.73  1,303.65 
Debt to Equity Ratio  0.39  0.87 

Note 40 : Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies					   

The Group business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks viz., market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
The Group’s focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial risk and to address the issue to minimize the potential 
adverse effects of its financial performance.					   

The Group financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Group 
financial risk management policy is set by the Group management.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the foreign currency 
exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes.					   

Interest rate risk:

Out of total borrowings, large portion represents short term borrowings and the interest rate primarily based on the 
Group credit rating and also the changes in the financial market. Group influence rating and also factors which influential 
the determination of the interest rates by the banks to minimize the interest continuously monitoring over all factors rate 
risks.					   

Exposure to interest rate risk:

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at  
31 March, 2020

Floating rate borrowings: Working capital loan			    31.75  76.89 

Total  31.75  76.89 

A change of 50 basis points (bp) in interest rates would have following impact on profit before tax	
			 

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at  
31 March, 2020

50 bp increase - Decrease in profit  1.53  0.83 

50 bp decrease - Increase in profit  (1.53)  (0.83)

Credit risk:					   

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the 
Group. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, loans, investments and other financial 
assets.					   

At each reporting date, the Group measures loss allowance for certain class of financial assets based on historical 
trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the Group operates.	

Credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Group customer profiles are well balanced in 
Government and Non-Government customers and diversified amongst in various geographies. All trade receivables 
are reviewed and assessed on a quarterly basis.					   

Credit risk arising from investments and balances with banks is limited because the counter parties are banks and 
recognised companies with high credit worthiness.					   
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(i)	 Provision for expected credit losses:				 

	 The Group measures Expected Credit Loss (ECL) for financial instruments based on historical trend, industry 

practices and the business environment in which the Group operates.				  

	 For financial assets, a credit loss is the difference between:				  

	 (a) 	 the contractual cash flows that are due to an entity under the contract; and				  

	 (b) 	 the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

	 The Group recognizes in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust 

the loss allowance at the reporting date in accordance with Ind AS 109.

	 In determination of the allowances for credit losses on trade receivables, the Group has used a practical expedience 

by computing the expected credit losses based on ageing matrix, which has taken into account historical credit 

loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information.				  

(ii)	 The movement of Trade Receivables and Expected Credit Loss are as follows:

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2021

As at  
31 March, 2020

Trade Receivables (Gross)  1,456.88  4,461.24 

Less: Expected Credit Loss  (9.36)  (605.71)

Trade Receivables (Net)  1,447.52  3,855.53 

Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits				  

The Group considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and service standards 

to select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Investments of surplus funds are made only 

with approved counterparties. The maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet is                                

` 2,300.83  lakhs as at 31.03.2021 and ` 4,506.82 lakhs as at 31.03.2020, which is the carrying amount of cash and 

cash equivalents, other bank balances, investments, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets.	

Liquidity risk:					   

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations 

without incurring unacceptable losses. The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity 

planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial investments and financial assets (i.e. trade receivables, 

other financial assets) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of working 

capital loans, letter of credit facility, bank loans and credit purchases.					   

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities to the contractual 

maturity date:									       

As at 31 March, 2021

Particulars Less than 1 
year

1 to 5 years More than 5 
years

Total

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 
(Including Current Maturities)

 41.77  506.91  -    548.68 

Trade Payables  649.47  -    -    649.47 

Other Financial Liabilities  303.95  -    -    303.95 

Total  995.19  506.91  -    1,502.10 
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As at 31 March, 2020

Particulars Less than 1 
year

1 to 5 years More than 5 
years

Total

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 
(Including Current Maturities)

 839.57  696.56  125.00  1,661.13 

Trade Payables  2,585.70  -    -    2,585.70 

Other Financial Liabilities  351.81  -    -    351.81 
Total  3,777.08  696.56  125.00  4,598.64 

Note 41 : Corporate Social Responsibility	

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the Financial Year 2020-21 is Nil as the Company has 
incurred losses in the previous years.

Note 42 : Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2021

For the year ended  
31 March, 2020

Other matter (Travel)  -   3.16

Note 43 : Employee Benefits									       

a) 	 Defined Contribution Plans									       

	 Contribution to the provident Fund and Superannuation funds are charged to the Profit and loss statement.	

	 During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the profit & loss statement:

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Contribution to Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund 19.54 38.58

Contribution to Superannuation Fund  0.73  4.17 

b) 	 Post Employment Defined Benefit Plans								      

	 Parent Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. As per the 
scheme, the Gratuity Trust fund managed by the Trust, makes payment to vested employees on retirement, 
death, incapacitation or termination/ resignation of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s 
eligible salary depending upon the tenure of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. 
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity plan are determined by actuarial valuation as set out in Note 2.15, based upon 
which, the Parent Company makes contribution to the Gratuity fund.

c) 	 Other Long Term Employee Benefit Plan

	 Leave Encashment Scheme [LES] (Unfunded)	

	 The Group provides for accumulated leave benefit for eligible employees payable at the time of retirement/ 
resignation from service as per the policy of the Group, actual number of days outstanding based on last drawn 
salary. The liabilities with regard to leave encashment scheme are determined by actuarial valuation as set out in 
Note 2.15.

d) 	 Risk Exposure

	 Aforesaid post employment defined benefit plans typically expose the Group to actuarial risks, most significant of 
which are discount rate risk, salary escalation risk and demographic risk.		

	 Discount Risk											         

	 The Group is exposed to the risk of fall in discount rate. A fall in discount rate will eventually increase the ultimate 
cost of providing the above benefit thereby increasing the value of liability.

	 Salary Escalation Risk

	 The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participant. 
An increase in the salary of plan participants will increase the plan liabilities.

	 Demographic Risk											         

	 In the valuation of liability certain demographic (mortality and attrition rates) assumptions are made. The Group is 
exposed to this risk to the extent of actual experience eventually being worse compared to the assumption thereby 
causing an increase in the plan liability.	
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Details of Defined Benefits plans-as required by Ind AS-19 Employee Benefits

Particulars Gratuity 
Funded

 Gratuity 
Unfunded 

Gratuity 
Funded

 Gratuity 
Unfunded 

Components of employee expenses 2020-21 2019-20
Current service cost  3.58  -    6.19  2.39 

Past service cost  -    -    -    -   

Interest cost  7.02  -    7.01  0.85 

Expected return on Plan Assets  (5.29)  -    (6.46)  -   

Total expenses recognised in the Profit & Loss Statement  5.30  -    6.73  3.24 

Actuarial (gain)/loss-Obligation opening Balance  (11.20)  -    (26.38)  4.60 

Actuarial (gain)/loss-Obligation  (0.64)  -    9.39  (0.14)

Actuarial (gain)/loss-Plan assets  4.61  -    5.79  -   

Total Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in other 
comprehensive (income)/expenses

 (7.23)  -    (11.20)  4.46 

Actual Contribution & Benefits payment for the year 2020-21 2019-20
Actual Benefits payments  42.09  -    22.50  -   

Actual contributions  0.06  -    0.05  -   
Net assets/(liability) recognised in the Balance 
Sheet 2020-21 2019-20

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation  51.34  -    100.22  15.21 

Fair value of Plan Assets  34.23  -    70.57  -   
Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)]  (17.11)  -    (29.66)  15.21 

Net assets/ (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet  (17.11)  -    (29.66)  (15.21)
Change in Defined Benefits Obligation during the year 2020-21 2019-20
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the 
beginning of the year

 100.23  -    100.14  12.11 

Current service cost  3.58  -    6.19  2.39 

Past service cost  -    -    -    -   

Interest Cost  7.02  -    7.01  0.85 

Actuarial Losses/(Gains)  (0.64)  -    9.39  (0.14)

Benefits paid  58.82  -    22.50  -   

Present value of Defined Benefits Obligation as at the 
end of the year

 51.35  -    100.22  15.21 

Change in Fair value of the Plan Assets during the year 2020-21 2019-20
Plan Asset as at the beginning of the year  70.57  -    92.35  -   

Actuarial Adjustment  5.02  -    -    -   

Expected return on the Plan Assets  5.29  -    6.46  -   

Actual Company contributions  0.06  -    0.05  -   

Actuarial (Losses)/Gains  (4.61)  -    (5.79)  -   

Benefits paid  (42.09)  -    (22.50)  -   

Plan Asset as at the end of the year  34.23  -    70.57  -   
Actuarial Assumptions 2020-21 2019-20
Discount rate 7.00%  -   7.00% 7.00%

Expected return on plan assets 7.00%  -   7.00%  -   

Withdrawal rate (per annum) (18 to 30 years) 5.00%  -   5.00% 5.00%

Withdrawal rate (per annum) (30 to 44 years) 3.00%  -   3.00% 3.00%

Withdrawal rate (per annum) (44 to 60 years) 2.00%  -   2.00% 2.00%

Salary escalation rate 5.00%  -   5.00% 5.00%

The expected rate of return on the plan asset is based on the average long term rate of return expected on investment 
of funds during estimated term of obligation.	

The assumption of the future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account the inflation, 
seniority, promotion & other relevant factors.	

(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars Gratuity 
Funded

 Gratuity 
Unfunded 

Gratuity 
Funded

 Gratuity 
Unfunded 

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage 
of the total plan assets 2020-21 2019-20

Insurer Managed Funds 100%  -   100%  -   
Experience Adjustments 2020-21 2019-20
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the 
end of the year

 51.35  -    100.22  -   

Fair value  of plan assets as at the end of the year  34.23  -    70.57  -   

Funds Status [Surplus/(Deficit)]  (17.11)  -    (29.66)  -   

Experience adjustment of Plan Liabilities  (17.37)  -    2.31  -   

Experience adjustment of Plan Asset  (4.61)  -    70.57  -   

The liability for leave encashment is accounted for on accrual basis on actuarial valuation at the year end.

Gratuity Funded Sensitivity Analysis for significant assumptions as on 31.03.2021 are as follows:- 	

Assumptions Discount rate Future Salary Withdrawal Rate

Sensitivity Analysis 1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation	  (2.71)  3.07  3.11  (2.79)  0.36  (0.41)

Gratuity Funded Sensitivity Analysis for significant assumptions as on 31.03.2020 are as follows:-

Assumptions Discount rate Future Salary Withdrawal Rate

Sensitivity Analysis 1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation	  (4.34)  4.99  5.04  (4.46)  0.66  (0.74)

Gratuity Unfunded Sensitivity Analysis for significant assumptions as on 31.03.2021 are as follows:-	

Assumptions Discount rate Future Salary Withdrawal Rate

Sensitivity Analysis 1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation	  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Gratuity Unfunded Sensitivity Analysis for significant assumptions as on 31.03.2020 are as follows:- 

Assumptions Discount rate Future Salary Withdrawal Rate

Sensitivity Analysis 1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

1.00% 
Increase

1.00% 
Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation	  (1.36)  1.57  1.59  (1.39)  0.19  (0.22)

The Associate Company expects to contribute a 4.32 lakhs (Previous year ` 7.06 lakhs) to gratuity fund in next year.	

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31.03.2021 is 9 years (as at 31.03.2020: 8 years).	

Estimate of expected benefit payments (In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)

Particulars Gratuity 
Funded

Gratuity 
Unfunded

01 April, 2021 to 31 March, 2022  13.52  -   

01 April, 2022 to 31 March, 2023  6.74  -   

01 April, 2023 to 31 March, 2024  1.56  -   

01 April, 2024 to 31 March, 2025  1.89  -   

01 April, 2025 to 31 March, 2026  5.03  -   

01 April, 2026 onwards  22.60  -   

(All amounts in c Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 44 : Related Party Disclosures	 					   

Pursuant to Ind AS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”, following parties are to be treated as related parties:

(a) 	 Entities over which key managerial personnel is able to exercise significant influence:

	 Bharat Gears Limited (BGL)					   

	 Vibrant Reality Infra Pvt. Ltd. (VRIPL)					   

	 Ultra Consultants Pvt. Ltd. (UCPL)					   

	 Cliplok Simpak (India) Pvt. Ltd. (CSIPL)					  

	 Samreet Investment & Management Consultancy Pvt. Ltd. (SIMCPL)					   

	 Gulab Merchandise Pvt. Ltd. (GMPL)					   

	 City Fame Engineering Private Limited (CFEPL)					   

					   

(b) 	 Key managerial personnel					   
	 Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar - Chairman & Managing Director					   

	 Mr. Sachit Kanwar - Executive Director-Operations					   

	 Mr. Sameer Kanwar - Non-Executive Director					   

	 Dr. Sanjeev Kumar - Non-Executive Independent Director					  

	 Mr. Pradeep Kumar Mittal - Non-Executive Independent Director					   

	 Mr. Rajiv Chandra Rastogi - Non-Executive Independent Director					   

	 Mr. Naresh Kumar Verma - Non-Executive Director					   

	 Mrs. Seethalakshmi Venkataraman - Non-Executive Independent Director					   

	 Mr. Prabhat Chand Kothari - Non-Executive Director					   

	 Mr. Jagdeep Singh - Non-Executive Director					   

					   

(c ) 	 KMP’s Relative					   
	 Mr. Praveen Kumar Mittal - Brother of Mr. Pradeep Kumar Mittal					   

					   

Details of transactions with the related parties

Particulars

Entities over which 
key managerial 

personnel is able to 
exercise significant 

influence

Key managerial 
personnel

KMP’s 
Relative

Transaction during the year 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Rent expense

BGL  4.32  7.85 - - - -

VRIPL  2.40  4.80 - - - -

Electricity Charges paid

VRIPL  0.47  2.11 - - - -

(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars

Entities over which 
key managerial 

personnel is able to 
exercise significant 

influence

Key managerial 
personnel

KMP’s 
Relative

Transaction during the year 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20
Managerial remuneration
Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar - - * * - -

Mr. Sachit Kanwar** - - 15.35 78.15 - -
Director's sitting fees
Mr. Sameer Kanwar - - 0.50 - - -

Dr. Sanjeev Kumar - - 1.05 0.45 - -

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Mittal - - 0.75 0.60 - -

Mrs. Seethalakshmi Venkataraman - - 0.90 0.60 - -

Mr.  Rajiv Chandra Rastogi - - 1.05 1.10 - -

Mr. Naresh Kumar Verma - - 0.50 0.10 - -
Fees for Profeesional services
Mr. Praveen Kumar Mittal - - - - 0.50 1.80
Marketing Service Fee
BGL - 154.32 - - - -
Rent Income
BGL - 11.75 - - - -
Other selling expenses
BGL - 10.46 - - - -
Interest expense
UCPL 3.00 1.50 - - - -

Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar - - - 6.02 - -

CSIPL 2.00 5.01 - - - -

CFEPL - - - - - -

VRIPL 2.00 6.70 - - - -

Particulars

Entities over which 
key managerial 

personnel is able to 
exercise significant 

influence

Key managerial 
personnel

KMP’s 
Relative

Loan recieved/(repaid) 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

Unsecured Loan
Mr. Naresh Kumar Verma - -  250.00 - - -

CSIPL  -    20.00  -   - - -

VRIPL  1.00  20.00  -   - - -

CFEPL  -    -    -   - - -

UCPL - 30.00 - - - -

* Token remuneration of c 12 (Rupees Twelve) paid to Chairman & Managing Director.	

** w.e.f 28 September, 2020 resigned as Joint Managing Director and w.e.f  01 October, 2020, Mr. Sachit Kanwar 
appointed as Executive Director - Operations and token remuneration of a 6 (Rupees Six) paid.

(All amounts in c Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars

Entities over which 
key managerial 

personnel is able to 
exercise significant 

influence

Key managerial 
personnel

KMP’s 
Relative

Guarantee given for credit limits 
taken by Company

31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

VRIPL  1,419.14  1,877.00 -  -   - -

Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar  -    -    1,920.14  2,950.12 - -

Mr. Sachit Kanwar  -    -   -  405.00 - -

Amount Payable 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

Mr. Surinder Paul Kanwar  -    -   -  50.00 - -

Mr. Sachit Kanwar  -    -   -  0.89 - -

Mr. Sameer Kanwar  -    -    0.37  -   - -

Dr.  Sanjeev Kumar  -    -    0.74  0.18 - -

Mr. Rajiv Chandra Rastogi  -    -    0.74  0.62 - -

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Mittal  -    -    0.42  0.50 - -

Mr. Naresh Kumar Verma  -    -    250.37  0.09 - -

Mrs. Seethalakshmi Venkataraman  -    -    0.65  0.36 - -

Mr. Praveen Kumar Mittal  -    -   - - 0.46 0.95

UCPL  33.46  45.00 - - - -

BGL  24.24  95.37 - - - -

CSIPL  22.01  70.00 - - - -

VRIPL  40.53  96.66 - - - -

Note 45 : Financial Instruments

Particulars Notes
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

FVPL FVOCI Amortized 
Cost

FVPL FVOCI Amortized 
Cost

Financial Assets

Investment

Equity Shares (Quoted) 5  172.70  -    -    60.54  -    -   

Loans and Advances 6,14  -    -    19.14  -    -    46.70 

Trade Receivables 7,11  -    -    1,447.52  -    -    3,855.53 

Cash and Bank Balances 12,13  -    -    445.74  -    -    302.74 

Other Financial Assets 8,15  -    -    36.85  -    -    223.45 

Total Financial Assets  172.70  -    1,949.25  60.54  -    4,428.42 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 20,22  -    -    522.85  -    -    1,794.20 

Trade Payables 23  -    -    649.47  -    -    2,883.85 

Other Financial Liabilities 24  -    -    329.77  -    -    376.62 

Total Financial Liabilities  -    -    1,502.09  -    -    5,054.67 
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Fair Value Hierarchy							     

The Group uses following method of hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 

valuation techniques:							     

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).”							     

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).	

i) 	 Financial assets and liabilities are measured at recurring fair value measurement at 31 March, 2021

Particulars Notes Level 1

Financial assets

Investment in:

Equity Instruments 5  172.70 

ii) 	 Financial assets and liabilities are measured at recurring fair value measurement at 31 March, 2020

Particulars Notes Level 1

Financial assets

Investment in:

Equity Instruments 5  60.54 

During the year ended 31.03.2021, there were no transfers between Level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements and 

no transfer into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. There is no transaction/balance under level 3.

Note 46: Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic				  

The Company has incurred losses during the current year amounting to R 32.28 Lakhs, primarily owing to the lower 

volumes due to continuing slowdown in the EPC industry, ECL provision and decrease in fair value of investments. 

The Company has a positive net worth of R 1319.37 Lakhs and a net current asset position of R 166.71 Lakhs. The 

Company’s operations have also been impacted by the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic whch resulted in an 

interruption in Erection & Supply activity due to nationwide lockdown.

The Company has made an assessment of the impact of the pandemic on its operations and the carrying value of 

Plant & Machinery,Inventory, Receivables and other financial assets, by relying on the internal and external sources of 

information and indicators of economic forecasts. Based on such assessment, the Company is confident of recovering 

the carrying value of these assets as at 31 March, 2021.

Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known  events arising from COVID 19 

pandemic in the preparation of the financial statements. However, the impact assessment of COVID 19 is a continuing 

process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any 

material changes to future economic conditions.

Note 47 : New Accounting Pronouncements				  

a) 	 Amendment to Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combinations’ – change in definition of Business

	 The amendments clarify that while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set 

of activities and assets to qualify as a business. The amendments also introduce an optional concentration test 

that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. This 

amendment does not have material impact on the Company.
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b) 	 Amendment to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109 - interest rate benchmark reforms

	 The amendments provide temporary exception from applying specific hedge accounting requirement and allows 
continuation of hedge accounting when a hedging relationship is directly affected by interest rate benchmark 
reform only. The amendment also provides for additional disclosure for hedging relationship that is subject to 
this exception. The Company has floating rate debt linked to LIBOR which has been designated as cash flow 
hedges. However there is no interest rate benchmark reform happened which affect the hedge relationship. This 
amendment does not have material impact on the Company.

c) 	 Amendment to Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ - COVID-19 related rent concessions

	 The amendment provides a practical expedient which permits a lease not to assess whether a COVID-19 related 
rent concession is a lease modification. The Company had not applied the practical expedient. This amendment 
does not have material impact on the Company.

d) 	 Amendment to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 – definition of ‘material’

	 The amendment is not intend to change the underlying ‘materiality’ concept rather it provides broader guidance 
and make it easy to understand the meaning of ‘material’. This amendment does not have material impact on the 
Company.

e) 	 Amendment to Ind AS 10 and Ind AS 37 – material non adjusting event

	 The amendment requires an entity to disclose the nature and estimate of financial effect of a material non-
adjusting event after the reporting period. Ind AS 37 specifically requires such disclosure of a non-adjusting 
material restructuring plan. This amendment does not have material impact on the Company.

Note 48: Previous year’s figures are reclassified, where necessary, to conform to the current year’s classification.	
			 

			 

FORM AOC-I
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]	
									         (` in Lakhs)

S.NO. PARTICULARS

1. Name of ASSOCIATE Xlerate Driveline India Limited

2. Share Capital 1,487.70

3. Reserve & Surplus (498.84)

4. Total Assets 3,613.61

5. Total Liabilities 2,624.75

6. Investments -

7. Net Turnover 5,877.13

8. Profit (Loss) Before Taxation 164.48

9. Provision for Taxation 51.67

10. Profit (Loss) After Taxation 112.81

11. % of Shareholding 24.91%

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP            
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

Surinder Paul Kanwar
Chairman and Managing Director  

(DIN: 00033524)

 Sachit Kanwar        
Executive Director-Operations

(DIN: 02132124)

Sameer Kanwar (Din: 00033622)
Dr. Sanjeev Kumar (Din: 00364416) 
Seethalakshmi Venkataraman (Din: 07156898)
Rajiv Chandra Rastogi (Din: 00035460)
Naresh Kumar Verma (Din: 07087356) 
Directors

Sanjay Nath
Partner
Membership No. 082700

Rajan Malhotra
Chief Executive Officer
(PAN: AAEPM3206C)

Kailash Chandra Yadav
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AAAPY0255B)

Rashmi Aswal
Company Secretary

(PAN: AMEPR6639L)

Date: 22 June, 2021



Form No. SH-13
Nomination Form

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(1) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014

To, 
Raunaq EPC International Limited
20 K.M. Mathura Road, P.O. Box 353
P.O. Amar Nagar, Faridabad-121 003
Haryana

I/We_________________________________________________________________________ the holder(s) of the 
securities particulars of which are given hereunder wish to make nomination and do hereby nominate the following 
persons in whom shall vest, all the rights in respect of such securities in the event of my/our death.

(1) 	PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made)

Nature of securities Folio No. No. of securities Certificate No. Distinctive Nos.

(2)	 PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE/S

	 (a)	 Name: 

	 (b) 	Date of Birth: 

	 (c) 	 Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name: 

	 (d) 	Occupation: 

	 (e) 	Nationality: 

	 (f) 	 Address: 

	 (g) 	E-mail id: 

	 (h) 	Relationship with the security holder:

(3)	 IN CASE NOMINEE IS A MINOR

	 (a)	 Date of birth:

	 (b)	 Date of attaining majority:

	 (c)	 Name of guardian:

	 (d)	 Address of guardian:

(4)	 PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CASE MINOR NOMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY

	 (a) 	Name: 

	 (b) 	Date of Birth: 

	 (c) 	 Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name: 

	 (d) 	Occupation: 

	 (e) 	Nationality: 

	 (f) 	 Address: 

	 (g) 	E-mail id: 

	 (h) 	Relationship with the security holder:

	 (i)  	 Relationship with the minor nominee:
	

	 Name:

	 Address:

Name of the Security Holder(s)		  Signature

Witness with name and address		  Signature	



Form No. SH-14
Cancellation or Variation of Nomination

Pursuant to sub-section (3) of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(9) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014

To, 
Raunaq EPC International Limited
20 K.M. Mathura Road, P.O. Box 353
P.O. Amar Nagar, Faridabad-121 003
Haryana

I/We hereby cancel the nomination(s) made by me/us in favor of__________________________________________
________________________ (name and address of the nominee) in respect of the below mentioned securities.

Or

I/We hereby nominate the following person in place of _________________________________________________ 
as nominee in respect of the below mentioned securities in whom shall vest all rights in respect of such securities in 
the event of my/our death.

(1) 	PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being cancelled /varied)

Nature of securities Folio No. No. of securities Certificate No. Distinctive Nos.

(2)	 (a)	 PARTICULARS OF THE NEW NOMINEE:
		  i.	 Name: 
		  ii.	 Date of Birth: 
		  iii.	 Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name: 
		  iv.	 Nationality: 		
		  v.	 Address: 
		  vi.	 E-mail id: 
		  vii.	 Relationship with the Security holder:

	 (b) 	 IN CASE NEW NOMINEE IS A MINOR
		  i.	 Date of birth:
		  ii.	 Date of attaining majority:
		  iii.	 Name of guardian:
		  iv.	 Address of guardian:

(3)	 PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CASE MINOR NOMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY
	 (a) 	Name: 
	 (b) 	Date of Birth: 
	 (c) 	 Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name: 
	 (d) 	Occupation: 
	 (e) 	Nationality: 
	 (f) 	 Address: 
	 (g) 	E-mail id: 
	 (h) 	Relationship with the security holder:
	 (i)  	 Relationship with the minor nominee:	

Signature

Name of the Security Holder(s)

Witness with name and address	



PROFORMA FOR UPDATION OF SHAREHOLDER’S INFORMATION

NOTES : 1. IN CASE THE SPACE IS NOT SUFFICIENT PLEASE ATTACH A SEPARATE SHEET.

2. THE ABOVE PROFORMA MAY BE FILLED AND RETURNED EVEN IF THERE IS NO CHANGE IN THE PARTICULARS.

Folio No.
No. of Equity

Shares

Specimen Signature

(As per application/transfer deed)

Name(s):

First Holder

Occupation

Jt. Holder 1

Jt. Holder 2

Address

Pin Code

E-mail Id

Cert. Nos.

FROM FROM

Dist. Nos.

TO TO

(In case of Joint Holding, all

the Joint Holders to sign)
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